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Title of each class NONE

Securities registered or to be registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Ordinary Bearer Shares, no par value
Securities for which there is a reporting obligation pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act: NONE

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of each of the issuer s classes of capital or common stock as of the close of the period covered by the
annual report:

Ordinary Bearer Shares,noparvalue.............oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiineenenns 63,822,441
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yesy Noo

If this report is an annual or transition report, indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Yeso Noy

Note Checking the box above will not relieve any registrant required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 from their obligations under those Sections.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yesy Noo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer y Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated o
Indicate by check mark which financial statement item the registrant has elected to follow
Item 17y Item 18 0
If this is an annual report, indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yeso Noy

This amendment Form 20-F/A filing is being made due to final alterations missing and the filing agent filing the wrong document - the original
filing was filed timely on June 27, 2007
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CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS

SGL CARBON Aktiengesellschaft is organized as a stock corporation under the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany. In this annual report
on Form 20-F, we refer to SGL CARBON Aktiengesellschaft and (unless the context requires otherwise) its consolidated subsidiaries as the

SGL Group orthe Group orthe Company . Referencesto SGL are to SGL CARBON Aktiengesellschaft without its consolidated subsidiaries.
We refer to the ordinary bearer shares, no par value, of SGL as the Shares .

The following abbreviated references to the Business Areas of the SGL Group will also be used in this Annual Report: CG for the Carbon and
Graphite Business Area, S for the Specialties Business Area (formerly GS  Graphite Specialties) and SGL T or T for the SGL Technologies
Business Area. In January 2005 we sold the surface protection business of the former Corrosion Protection Business Area (CP). The remaining
business of CP was transferred to and is included in the results of the Specialties Business Area. The term Business Area is used for reporting
purposes, whereas the term Business Unit  is used in business-related discussions within this ocument and both terms define the above reporting
units of SGL Group.

We realigned our business areas with effect from February 1, 2007 creating a new structure consisting of two business areas Performance

Products and Advanced Materials encompassing three business units: Performance Products, = Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers
& Composites. Performance Products corresponds to the former Carbon and Graphite business area and contains the new business unit

Performance Products. Advanced Materials comprises the former Specialties and SGL Technologies business areas which have been re-grouped

into the two remaining business units, Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers & Composites. Graphite Materials & Systems

comprises the activities of the former Specialties business area as well as the expanded natural graphite business line which was previously part

of the former SGL Technologies business area, while Carbon Fibers & Composites encompasses the carbon fiber and composites activities of

the former SGL Technologies business area.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking statements and information relating to the SGL Group. Words such as anticipate , believe , estimate ,
expect , intend , plan , project and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. These statements reflect the current belief of our
management as well as assumptions made by, and information currently available to, the SGL Group.

Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. If these risks and uncertainties materialize, or if our assumptions prove

incorrect, our actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from any future results, performance or achievements

expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause our forward-looking statements to prove incorrect include
changes in general economic and business conditions, changes in currency exchange rates and interest rates, introduction of competing products

by other companies, lack of acceptance of new products or services by the SGL Group s targeted customers, changes in business strategy and
various other factors. See Item 3, Key Information Risk Factors for a discussion of risks that we believe particularly significant to the Group and
our business. We do not intend, and do not assume any obligation, to update these forward-looking statements.
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PART I
ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISERS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.
ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION
Selected Financial Data

We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Since 2002, IFRS is
the term for the entire body of accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, replacing the earlier IAS, or
International Accounting Standards. Individual accounting standards that the IASB issued prior to this change in terminology continue to use the
prefix IAS . The SGL Group prepared the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS for all years presented.

We derived the following selected financial data for each of the years in the five-year period ended December 31, 2006 from our Consolidated
Financial Statements. We prepared this information in accordance with IFRS or, where indicated, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). IFRS differs in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. See Item 5, Operating and Financial Review
and Prospects-Significant Differences Between IFRS and U.S. GAAP as well as Note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained
elsewhere in this annual report for a discussion of these differences.

Until December 31, 2004, 18 subsidiaries and two joint ventures were excluded from consolidation and accounted for at cost, since these were
deemed to be not material as whole. In the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2005 we changed our accounting policy, and
as a result these subsidiaries have been included in consolidation and the joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity method. In this
context, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity as of January 1, 2003, as well as the Consolidated Balance sheet as of December
31, 2004 and the Consolidated Income Statement and Cash Flow Statement, for the years presented, have been restated retrospectively.

IFRS 2 Share-based payment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005. The IFRS is to be applied retrospectively on
all share-based payments granted since November 7, 2002, that still existed when the standard became effective and requires comparable
information to be restated. This also includes a restatement to the opening balances of the retained earnings in the earliest period presented.

The revised IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements defines a presentation of current and non-current assets and liabilities as separate groups
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The standard must be used for reporting periods of a fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2005 or later. The
Company s Consolidated Balance Sheet was structured accordingly and the previous years figures were restated.

As indicated in their reports that appear elsewhere in this annual report, Ernst & Young Aktiengesellschaft, Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Eschborn, Germany, independent auditors, have audited our IFRS Consolidated Financial Statements for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. See details in our Consolidated Financial Statements Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm  F-2.
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Consolidated Income Statements Data:
IFRS

Sales revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, research and development, general and
administrative expenses and other operating income and
expenses, net

Profit from operations!*

Income/expenses from companies accounted for at equity
Interest expense (net) @

Other net financial costs

Income tax benefit (expense)

Minority interests

Net profit / loss (after minority interests)
Discontinued operations

Net profit/loss attributable to shareholders

Earnings (Loss) per share @
Earnings (Loss) per ADR ¢

U.S. GAAP
Net profit/(loss) 19
Basic earnings (loss) per share @
Basic earnings (loss) per ADR ¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per share @
Diluted earnings (loss) per ADR ¢
Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:
IFRS / TIAS
Working capital ©
Total assets (1>
Financial debt ©
Shareholders equity

Thereof issued capital

Weighted average shares!?
U.S. GAAP
Total assets (>

Shareholders equity

Other Data:

As of and for the year ended December 31,

20060 2006 2005@ 2004 2003 2002?
$
(in millions; except per share and certain other data)

1,568.3 1,190.8 1,068.8 944.0 931.5 977.8
(1,062.6) (806.8) (746.7) (681.3) (693.6) (759.9)
505.7 384.0 322.1 262.7 237.9 217.9
(324.1) (246.1) (209.3) (203.7) (215.6) (210.6)
181.6 137.9 112.8 59.0 223 7.3
1.6 1.2 0.8 (0.8) (1.1 (1.8)
(69.8) (53.0) (52.2) (50.6) (49.3) (36.7)
(12.7) 9.7 (14.2) (10.5) (23.3) 8.8
(46.8) (35.5) (19.1) (1.6) 18.6 (0.8)
(0.3) 0.2) 0.1 0.1) (0.3) 0.0
53.6 40.7 28.2 (4.6) (33.1) (23.2)
0.0 0.0 0.0 (81.8) (23.4) (5.0)
53.6 40.7 28.2 (86.4) (56.5) (28.2)
0.87 0.66 0.50 (1.66) (2.55) (1.29)
0.29 0.22 0.17 (0.55) (0.85) (0.43)
77.2 58.6 22.8 (87.9) (52.4) (26.6)
1.25 0.95 0.40 (1.68) (2.36) (1.22)
0.42 0.32 0.13 (0.56) (0.79) 0.41)
1.25 0.95 0.40 (1.68) (2.36) (1.22)
0.42 0.32 0.13 (0.56) (0.79) 0.41)
562.9 427.4 386.3 346.5 3854 399.2
1,660.5 1,260.8 1,190.5 1,320.4 1,246.9 1,282.8
420.8 319.5 342.1 419.6 497.9 453.4
586.1 445,0 322.1 267.3 104.4 191.8
212.0 161.0 144.9 142.9 56.8 56.0
61,549,122 61,549,122 56,390,621 52,152,691 22,148,078 21,813,930
1,735.3 1,317.6 1,241.2 1,362.2 1,294.3 1,329.7
568.1 431.3 299.7 273.4 123.1 205.2
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IFRS / IAS

Gross profit margin (%) 322 322 30.1 27.8 25.5 22.3
Operating margin (%) 11.6 11.6 10.6 6.3 24 0.7
Depreciation and amortization 70.3 534 65.1 67.6 71.8 75.9
Capital expenditures 85.9 65.2 44.7 46.3 439 51.2
Ratio of net financial debt to shareholders equity (%%’ 51.5 51.5 82.2 120.3 432.8 225.2
Return on capital employed (%) ® 16.0 16.0 13.8 7.5 2.5 0.7
Research and development expenses 33.6 25.5 18.0 19.2 19.0 24.1




Edgar Filing: SGL CARBON AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F/A

Back to Contents

As of and for the year ended December 31,

2006V 2006 2005@ 2004 2003 2002
$

(in millions; except per share and certain other data)

Quantity of graphite electrodes sold (thousands of metric
tons) 209,000 209,000 222,000 209,000 202,000 173,000

Number of employees worldwide (end of year) 5,249 5,249 5,263 5,265 5,603 5,982

Business Area Data:

Sales Revenue ©

Carbon and Graphite 943.1 716.1 643.7 562.5 564.4 556.2
Specialties") 396.5 301.1 263.4 246.3 239.1 268.3
SGL Technologies !V 225.6 171.3 159.0 133.5 125.2 150.4

Profit / (loss) from operations (12 (4

Carbon and Graphite 224.9 170.8 121.6 86.4 61.5 51.3
Specialties (1 42.0 31.9 19.8 139 12.2 6.6
SGL Technologies 11 (1.3) (1.0) 0.2 (10.6) (14.0) (11.3)

€]
@)

3
“

&)
©

)
®

®

Amounts in this column have been translated solely for the convenience of the reader at an exchange rate of 1.00 = $1.3170, the year end exchange rate 2006

as published by the European Central Bank.

Effective January 6, 2005, we sold the Surface Protection and Plastics Process Technology businesses and present these activities as discontinued operations

for 2004. The fiscal years 2003 and 2002 have been adjusted accordingly. As described in the introduction to this section, effective January 1, 2005 we

consolidated 18 subsidiaries and two joint ventures, which had previously been accounted for at cost. Effective January 1, 2003 we have consolidated SGL

Angraph Sp. Z 0.0, Poland, a previously non consolidated company. Beginning January 1, 2002, we have consolidated SGL Brakes GmbH and SGL

Information-Systems LLC, whose net assets were previously included in other consolidated companies.

For 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, we have included the interest component of additions to the pension provision of 13.1 million, 13.5 million, 13.3 million and
14.0 million, respectively, as an expense in the financial result (interest expense) in accordance with IFRS.

We have calculated earnings (loss) per share for each period based upon net profit or loss attributable to shareholders divided by the weighted average

number of shares outstanding. We have calculated earnings (loss) per ADR as earnings (loss) per share divided by three. Because of no dilutive effect in 2006

and 2005 and the net loss in the years 2004, 2003 and 2002, the diluted earnings (loss) per share for 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was identical to the

basic earnings (loss) per share.

Working Capital is defined as inventories plus trade receivables, less trade payables. Under U.S. GAAP, working capital at December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004,

2003 and 2002 would have been 415.4 million, 304.8 million, 280.0 million, 158.1 million and 41.3 million, respectively.

Financial debt include refinancing costs of 12.6 million, 16.0 million and 20.3 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which are amortized over the

remaining terms.

Financial debt plus accrued refinancing costs less cash and cash equivalents (net financial debt), divided by shareholders equity at year-end.

Profit/(loss) from operations divided by the amount of intangible and tangible assets, inventories and trade receivables, less trade payables at the end of the

year.

Business area data for sales revenue do not include certain amounts for sales not allocable to a business area. Such sales include sales to employees, R&D

services and rental income. For the years 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 these amounts were 2.3 million, 2.7 million, 1.7 million, 2.8 million and 2.9

million, respectively.

(10) Net loss under U.S. GAAP is presented before cumulative changes in accounting principles in 2002.
(11) As of January 1, 2002, we reclassified our expanded graphite business in Europe from Specialties to SGL Technologies. Due to the divestiture of the Surface

Protection and plastic process technology businesses (note 1 above), the process technology activities from the former Corrosion Protection Business Area
(CP) were reorganized and included in the Specialties Business Area (S). We have adjusted the corresponding figures for the fiscal years 2003 and 2002 to
reflect our current segment reporting structure.

(12) Business area data for profit (loss) from operations for the years 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 does not include unallocated corporate costs and

consolidation adjustments. See Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(13) Weighted average number of shares.
(14) We present profit/(loss) from operations as a further supplemental measure of our performance. Profit/(loss) from operations is not a uniformly or legally

defined U.S. GAAP financial measure. It generally represents earnings before discontinued operations, financial result and taxes.

7

10
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The following table shows profit/(loss) from operations as derived from our net profit (loss), on a consolidated level and, with respect to each of our three
business areas:

As of and for the years ended December
31,

2006 2005 2004

(in millions of )

Consolidated net profit (loss) before minority interests 40.9 28.1 (86.3)
Discontinued operations 0.0 0.0 81.8
Consolidated net financing costs 61.5 65.6 61.9
Consolidated income tax expense 35.5 19.1 1.6
Carbon and Graphite 170.8 121.6 86.4
Specialties 31.9 19.8 13.9
SGL Technologies (1.0) 0.2 (10.6)
Other (63.8) (28.8) (30.7)
Consolidated profit from operations 137.9 112.8 59.0

(15) Total assets were adjusted by 7.2 million and 4.7 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to a reclassification of plan assets arising
from U.S. pension plans.

Exchange Rates

The following table shows the high, low, average and period-end euro-dollar exchange rates for the five years ended December 31, 2006 and the
high and low euro-dollar exchange rates for the six months ended May 31, 2007. Up to November 30, 2005 these rates are based on the noon
buying rates published by Deutsche Bank. Starting December 2005 we use the reference exchange rates published by the European Central Bank
(ECB). The reference rates of the ECB are based on the regular daily concertation procedure between central banks within and outside the
European System of Central Banks, which normally takes place at 2.15 p.m. ECB time (CET).

Period Period
Period High Low Average End

(in dollars per euro)

2002 1.0477 0.8600 0.9448 1.0415
2003 1.2610 1.0371 1.1309 1.2610
2004 1.3640 1.1798 1.2434 1.3640
2005 1.3514 1.1655 1.2450 1.1797
2006 1.3331 1.1826 1.2557 1.3170
December 2006 1.3331 1.3095 1.3213 1.3170
January 2007 1.3270 1.2893 1.2999 1.2954
February 2007 1.3230 1.2925 1.3074 1.3211
March 2007 1.3352 1.3083 1.3105 1.3318
April 2007 1.3649 1.3352 1.3208 1.3605
May 2007 1.3615 1.3420 1.3268 1.3453

At June 25, 2007 the euro dollar exchange rate, based on the noon buying rate published by the European Central Bank was $1.3461 = 1.00.
Fluctuations in the euro-dollar exchange rate will affect the dollar equivalent of the Share price in euros on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and, as
a result, are likely to affect the market price of the American Depositary Shares on the New York Stock Exchange as well as the amount of any
dividends received by holders of American Depositary Receipts.

11
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Dividends
SGL did not declare dividends for the fiscal years 1998-2006.

Except as described herein, holders of ADRs are entitled to receive dividends on the Shares represented by the ADRs evidenced by such ADRs.
SGL will pay any cash dividends payable to such holders to Deutsche Bank (up to 2007: JPMorgan Chase Bank), as depositary, in euro; subject
to certain exceptions, the depositary will convert these payments into dollars. Dividends paid on Shares

12
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and dividends paid to holders and beneficial owners of ADRs are subject to deduction of German withholding tax. See Item 10, Additional
Information Taxation .

Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds
Not applicable.

Risk Factors

Potential investors should carefully consider the following specific risk factors along with the other information contained in this annual report
before deciding to invest in the SGL Shares. Each of the risks described below could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, each of these risks could cause our share price to decline, and investors could lose all or part of their
investment. Additional risks not known to us or that we currently consider immaterial may also impair our business operations. The order in
which the following risk factors are presented is not an indication of the likelihood of their occurrence.

Our business is affected by the uncertainties of economic and political conditions.

Conditions in domestic and global economies have a strong impact on our business operations. Numerous factors, such as global or regional
political conflicts, have a continuous impact on macroeconomic parameters and the international capital markets. The uncertainty of economic
and political conditions can have a direct impact on the demand for our products and can also influence our planning and forecasting ability.
This is particularly the case for our products where we operate under global market conditions, such as graphite electrodes for the steel industry,
cathodes for the aluminum industry, carbon electrodes for the silicon-metal industry, graphite specialties supplied to the semiconductor industry
and industrial applications including carbon-ceramic brake discs supplied to the automotive industry, process equipment for the chemical
industry and structural parts and carbon fibers supplied to the aviation thermoplast and windmill industry.

We operate globally and face unpredictable international economic conditions, government policies, regulatory controls and changes in
public policy that could adversely affect our business.

We operate more than 38 manufacturing facilities, which are located in Europe, North America and Asia and sell our products in approximately
80 countries. In 2006, sales revenue of our products outside Germany accounted for approximately 85% of our total sales revenue. As a result,
we are subject to risks associated with operating in foreign countries, including fluctuations in currency exchange rates, declines in regional or
global economic activity, limitations, if any, on the conversion of foreign currencies into euro, and the possible imposition of investment and
other restrictions by governments. In addition, our business is subject to changes in the public policies of individual countries or states, including
potential increases in taxes and tax rates.

We must comply with a broad range of regulatory controls on the testing, manufacture and marketing of our products. In some countries,
including the United States and member states of the European Union, regulatory controls have become increasingly demanding. We expect that
this trend will continue. The new EU regulation concerning the registration, evaluation, authorization and restriction of chemicals ( REACH ),
imposes a new regulatory framework for the manufacture, importation and use of chemical substances in the EU which may entail a significant
increase in the testing and assessment of basic chemicals and chemical intermediates, leading to increased costs and reduced operating margins
for these products. This new regulatory regime became effective on June 1, 2007. We cannot assure you that changes in policies or regulations
will not harm our operating results or financial condition in the future.

The industries that use graphite electrodes can be regarded as cyclical, and declines in demand for graphite electrodes could adversely affect
our business.

In 2006, we derived approximately 48% of our sales revenue from the sale of graphite electrodes, our core business. We sell our graphite
electrodes primarily to the electric arc furnace

13
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( EAF ) steel industry. The EAF industry is global and customers are located in every major geographic market. As a result, the demand for and
the price of graphite electrodes are affected by changes in global and regional economic conditions. At the beginning of the decade, several
global macroeconomic factors including the Asian financial crises of 1998 to 1999, the structural crisis in the U.S. and Japanese steel industries
in 2001 and worldwide recessionary trends in 2002 adversely affected the graphite electrode industry, causing oversupply and price erosion.
Insolvencies of graphite manufacturers in both Germany and in the United States started another consolidation phase of the industry, including
site closures. Due to this consolidation and reduction of capacity as well as the growing demand of the steel industry from 2003 until 2006, the
graphite electrode industry has returned to profitability.

The market for graphite electrodes, particularly in Europe and North America, is mature and expands in line with overall economic growth and

with an increase in the proportion of EAF steel to total steel production. In addition, demand for our graphite electrodes sold to the EAF steel
industries may be adversely affected by technological improvements in those electrodes as well as in the manufacturing operations of our

customers, which reduce the rate of consumption or use of our electrodes for a given level of production. Since the early 1980s there has been a
steady gradual decrease in specific consumption  the quantity of graphite electrodes consumed per metric ton of steel produced due to improved
efficiency in EAF steelmaking processes and equipment design. Since the mid-1990s, increased EAF steel production has offset the decrease in
specific consumption, resulting in steady to slightly increasing demand for graphite electrodes. Despite the overall long-term trend, the

year-to-year fluctuations in the demand for graphite electrodes have been significant. We cannot assure you that future improvements in

steelmaking processes and technology or a decline in EAF steel production will not result in a net decrease in demand for graphite electrodes. A
significant drop in demand for our graphite electrodes could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We may encounter supply shortages and increases in the cost of raw materials and energy.

Raw materials are the largest component of our cost of sales, followed by personnel costs and energy costs. We are exposed to commodity price
risks through our dependence on various raw materials, such as petroleum coke, coal tar pitch, petroleum pitch, anthracite coal PAN-based
precursor and natural graphite flakes as well as energy supplies. The availability of high-quality raw materials is limited, and the market for our
primary raw material petroleum coke, in particular needle coke, is dominated by a small number of large suppliers with substantial market
power, which may undergo further consolidation. Most of our procurement agreements with key suppliers have a term of only one year, with
prices being renegotiated upon renewal. Where we have supply agreements with a term of more than one year, prices are variable and depend on
the development of specified parameters, including our suppliers raw material prices. In addition, the availability and price of raw materials and
energy may be affected by new regulations, suppliers allocations, interruptions in production by suppliers, general market conditions and natural
disasters. There can be no assurance that the raw materials we require will remain available in adequate quantities. We also face risks arising
from rising raw material costs. Our raw material costs increased on average by approximately 15% in 2006 compared with 2005. High energy
prices also continue to significantly influence our costs of production. We cannot assure you that we will be able to mitigate any future price
increases for raw materials and energy through increased efficiency or cost-savings. A substantial increase in raw material or energy prices, or a
continued interruption in raw material or energy supplies, could substantially harm our financial condition and results of operations.

We face substantial pricing pressure from our competitors.

The industries in which we operate are highly consolidated and, thus, competitive. Competition is based primarily on price, product quality and
customer service. Most of our production process is capital intensive, which results in high fixed costs. The pricing pressure thus has a direct
impact on our results. In addition, price decreases can be aggravated by temporary imbalances in supply and demand, with an oversupply in
stagnating markets. In 2000, the average price of our graphite electrodes increased by 10% in the markets where graphite electrodes are priced in
euro and 22% in markets where they are priced in U.S. dollars compared to 2005. The increases in 2005 compared to
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2004 were 5% and 13%, respectively. Despite these price increases, graphite electrodes, in particular, are subject to strong price competition in
general. Our market share could be adversely affected if we were forced to increase prices more than our competitors, or a competitor reduces
prices, or if we decide to maintain profit margins rather than market share or pursue other competitive strategies.

Continuing competition could either prevent us from raising prices, as necessary to offset higher production costs, force price reductions, or
reduce our sales volumes and revenues. It could also require us to spend more for sales, marketing and research and development. Any of these
developments could substantially harm our financial condition and results of operations.

We operate in a capital-intensive industry which involves significant investments, in particular for the maintenance and expansion of our
production facilities. These investments can give rise to risks of delay and to construction and other execution problems.

The manufacturing of carbon and graphite products, such as graphite electrodes, requires significant capital expenditures for the purchase and
set-up of specific machinery and equipment. Any new equipment must initially run through a start-up and qualification process in order to reach
standard operating procedures required by us and our customers. In addition, day-to-day operations require continuing maintenance programs to
keep plants and machinery in full operation. Such capital expenditures and maintenance programs require significant amounts of cash. The
failure of manufacturing equipment could cause significant problems for a plant and could result in our inability to deliver products in the
required quality or at the required time to our customers, which could in turn adversely affect our financial condition and result of operations.

We have made substantial investments in new businesses in the past several years in order to diversify our product portfolio. The success of
these investments depends on the successful development and commercialization of new products, in particular in the Carbon Fiber &
Composites business unit.

In line with our product portfolio diversification, we have entered into new businesses in particular with our high technology business unit
Carbon Fiber & Composites in which we have little experience and which are subject to rapid product developments and changes. In recent
years we have made substantial investments in our Carbon Fiber & Composites business unit, with the aim of increasing the share of our
revenues that we generate through our Advanced Materials business area. We anticipate continued increases in our research and development
expenses arising from these investments in 2007 and 2008. For the past three years, the sales revenue of our former SGL Technologies business
area (now largely corresponding to our new Carbon Fiber & Composites business unit) have fluctuated, and we have incurred net operating
losses in recent years, due to significant start-up expenses and commissioning costs.

Our ability to effectively compete in this and other new business areas will depend on our successfully developing, customizing, and producing
innovative products and designs at competitive prices, and on gaining market acceptance for these products and designs. Any growth in sales
and any increase in profitability in the Advanced Materials business area will depend largely on whether and how fast our newly developed
products will be able to prevail in the market. Our competitors in these new business areas may have greater technological expertise and superior
research and development infrastructure than we do, or may be more innovative in responding to changing technologies and customer needs.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully compete in these new markets. Thus, there can be no assurance that we will be
able to generate a satisfactory return on the investments in our Carbon Fiber & Composites business unit.

We may not be able to protect the intellectual property which may be important for the development of our Advanced Materials business
area.

Intellectual property rights are important for the development of the business, in particular in our Advanced Materials business area. In 2006,
approximately one third of the revenues in our former Specialties business area was generated by products that were developed in the previous
four years. The new product lines that we are developing in our Carbon Fibers & Composites business unit also rely to a significant extent on
such proprietary rights and information. We cannot assure you that any patents or trademarks that we obtain will adequately protect the covered
products and technologies. Nor can we assure you that our confidentiality covenants and agreements will
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adequately protect our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information not covered by patents or trademarks, or that others will not
obtain this information through independent development or other legal means. Furthermore, we cannot assure you that our activities will not
infringe on the proprietary rights of others or that we will be able to obtain licenses, on reasonable terms or otherwise, for the use of the
technology that we need. In addition, we cannot assure you that our proprietary rights and information will not become obsolete as a result of the
development of new technologies by our competitors. If we fail to obtain the necessary intellectual property rights or to protect our proprietary
information, or if we infringe upon the proprietary rights of others, the business, financial condition or results of operations of our Graphite
Materials & Systems or Carbon Fibers & Composites businesses could suffer significant harm.

Our debt, along with the obligations and covenants contained in our financing arrangements, limits our financial and operating flexibility.

The conditions of our 200.0 million senior secured facility (the Senior Facility ), as well as the conditions of the 200.0 million senior floating rate

notes (the Corporate Bonds ) limit our financial and operating flexibility. In particular, these agreements (see detailed description in Item 10,
Additional Information Material Contracts ) place limits on our ability to incur new debt, grant security to third persons, dispose of material

assets, take organizational measures such as mergers, changes of corporate form, joint ventures or similar transactions, or to enter into

transactions with related parties. Other limitations generally concern the payment of dividends and the repurchase of own shares. In addition, we

must meet certain financial covenants in the context of our financing agreements. Our substantial debt and our compliance with the covenants

contained in our financing agreements could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Furthermore, we continue to require significant funds for our operations. We cannot assure you that we will be able to generate or obtain
sufficient funds needed for our future operations and our other cash requirements, or that we will meet all loan covenants and other obligations
in connection with our present financing arrangements. We also cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance our financial liabilities as
they mature or that we will be able to negotiate the same or better terms in future loan agreements. In addition, we cannot assure you that we will
not have to incur additional debt in the future. Incurring such additional debt could further increase the risks regarding our debt and financing
arrangements.

For a detailed description of our debt, you should read the discussion in Item 5, Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.
Our ability to generate sufficient cash to service our debt depends on a number of factors, some of which are beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on or repay our debt and to fund our working capital requirements depends on the availability of financial
resources. Our ability to generate cash will depend on our future operating performance, as well as on general economic, financial, competitive,
market and other factors, many of which are beyond our control. In particular, our ability to generate adequate cash will depend at least in part
on:

a price increase in the carbon and graphite electrode industry, as well as our ability to maintain and grow our sales revenues in most of
our business segments;

our ability to contain costs and implement further cost savings through our restructuring programs and cost saving initiatives; and
our ability to realize earnings from new technologies and products.

We cannot assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flows from operations or that future borrowings will be available to us in an
amount sufficient to enable us to pay our debts as they become due or to fund our other liquidity requirements.

We are party to several antitrust court proceedings.

In the past several years, we have faced various court actions and investigations in connection with antitrust violations and have been assessed
substantial fines by the U.S. Department of Justice, the Canadian antitrust authorities and the European Commission for price fixing in the
graphite
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electrode industry, the specialty graphite industry and electrical and mechanical carbon and graphite products. As of December 31, 2005, all
fines raised by the U.S. Department of Justice and the Canadian antitrust authorities have been paid in full. In addition, European antitrust fines
have all either been paid or fully provided for and fully funded. In addition, we have made significant payments in the past several years in
defending and settling a number of civil suits seeking damages as a result of violations of antitrust laws. The majority of these civil suits have
been concluded by now. See Business Description Legal proceedings  Civil suits resulting from antitrust violations. We cannot predict the
ultimate outcome of the remaining proceedings.

Despite intensive internal legal training and establishing compliance policies, we cannot assure you that we or certain of our subsidiaries or
affiliates will not become subject to antitrust investigations by the relevant authorities and will not be required to pay additional fines or be
subject to claims for damages from third parties for violations of applicable antitrust laws. An unfavorable result in any of these future or current
proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our pension and retirement obligations could significantly exceed the existing provisions and funding status of these obligations.

We are obligated to pay our employees certain benefits, including retirement payments, life insurance and medical insurance following the
termination of their employment. These benefit plans consist of both defined contribution and defined benefit plans and vary based on the
country in which we maintain such plans.

Changes and movements in the equity, fixed income, real estate and other markets could significantly change the valuation of the assets of our
plans. A change in the yield assumptions used also has an impact on the calculation of the discounted present value of our pension obligations.
In addition, changes in pension and retirement benefit plan assumptions, such as rates for compensation increase, retirement rates, mortality
rates, health care cost trends and other factors can lead to significant increases or decreases in our pension or post-retirement benefit obligations.
This would affect the reported funded status of our plans and therefore could also negatively affect net periodic pension cost, future cash
contributions and equity. For further details on the funding status of pensions and other retirement benefit obligations see Note 21 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We cannot assure you that any future expenses or cash contributions that become necessary under our pension or retirement benefit plans will
not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Environmental matters could result in significant increases in costs.

Our operations are subject to various risks associated with manufacturing, including the related storage and transportation of raw materials,
products and wastes. We are also subject to numerous domestic and foreign laws and regulations relating to the storage, handling, generation,
treatment, emission, release, discharge and disposal of potentially hazardous substances and wastes (see Item 4, Information on the Company
Government Regulation ). Environmental and health laws and regulations could lead to the possibility of substantial fines, revocation of
applicable permits or orders for environmental cleanup. Any violations of these laws or regulations, or any adjustments to comply with changing
laws or regulations, could result in significant expenditures. Environmental laws in particular have continuously been tightened in the past
several years. As a result, we cannot assure you that a known, previously unknown or future contamination event, or any new, more stringent
regulations or their enforcement by the relevant authorities will not increase our environmental costs in the future. A significant increase in
environmental liabilities or costs could materially harm our financial condition and results of operations.

Prolonged work stoppages due to labor disputes could adversely affect our business.

Approximately two-thirds of our workforce is covered by collective bargaining agreements. Although we believe that we have satisfactory
relations with our works councils and unions, we cannot assure you that we will reach new agreements on satisfactory terms when existing
collective bargaining agreements expire. Nor can we assure you that we would reach such new agreements
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without work stoppages, strikes or similar industrial actions. If industrial actions substantially obstructed our manufacturing operations for an
extended period, our business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer material harm. Disruptions of the business operations,
strikes or similar measures at our customers or suppliers sites could also have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

We are exposed to currency exchange rate risks and interest rate risks.

We generate a significant portion of our sales revenue in U.S. dollars. As a result, a decline in the value of the U.S. dollar compared to the euro
will have a negative impact on our sales revenue, which are recorded in euro. Compared to the sales revenue that we generate in U.S. dollars, we
incur a relatively small portion of our cost of sales in U.S. dollars. As a result, a U.S. dollar that is weak compared to the euro will have a
negative impact on our gross profit and therefore on our results. A medium- to long-term decline in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the
euro and other currencies could also weaken our competitive position as compared to competitors who incur a relatively larger portion of their
cost of sales in U.S. dollars. After the value of the dollar declined relative to the euro during 2004, reaching a low-point at the end of 2004, the
U.S. dollar strengthened against the euro in 2005, weakened again in 2006. We cannot predict any trends for the future. We have entered into
hedging arrangements for the majority of our U.S. dollar transaction exposure in Europe for 2007 to reduce the risk of fluctuations in currency
exchange rates. However, these hedging arrangements can protect us only to a limited extent against a long-term decline of the U.S. dollar. See
also Item 5, Operating and Financial Review and Prospects Overview Currency exchange exposure.

Changes in tax laws or regulations could result in lower earnings and cash flows.

We operate in a large number of countries and therefore are subject to different tax laws and regulations. Changes in tax laws or regulations and
results from tax audits by fiscal authorities could result in higher tax expenses and cash payments. Furthermore, changes in tax laws or
regulations could impact our tax liabilities as well as our deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities.

Based upon a draft version of a Corporate Tax Reform Act 2008 by the German Ministry of Finance dated March 14, 2007, debt financing of
companies which are subject to German tax would be limited by a so-called modified interest barrier rule (modifizierte Zinsschranke). As a
general rule, the deduction of interest expenses exceeding interest income is limited to 30% of taxable income as increased by interest expense
and as reduced by interest income (unless, inter alia, such interest expenses exceed interest income by less than 1.0 million). Non-deductible
interest expenses would be carried forward and would generally be deductible in subsequent fiscal years, subject to limitations similar to those
applicable in the current year. There apply certain exceptions, e.g. a test which relates to the overall group s equity ratio (so-called escape clause)
and which is still under discussion.

It remains unclear whether and in which form the envisaged legislative changes will ultimately become effective and what impact they may have
on the Issuer s tax position. The new provisions are presently intended to apply from 2008 onwards unless specific other dates apply. However,
this is merely a tentative date and further amendments may be made to the draft bill, including on short notice.

In any event, if this draft bill, or an amended version of this bill, becomes law, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations.

Existing insurance coverage may prove inadequate.

We aim to cover foreseeable material risks by insurance. Our insurance coverage, however, may prove inadequate to fully cover the risks to
which the SGL Group is exposed. For certain risks, adequate insurance coverage may not be available on the market or at reasonable conditions.
Our sales revenues are exposed to credit default risks. For this reason and insofar as possible, we cover this risk through insurance to a certain
extent (which is limited, for example, in the United States). We use a variety of instruments for this purpose, such as pre-payment, payment
guarantees, confirmed letters of credit and credit insurance. We cannot assure you that payment shortfalls from customers (particularly in the
steel industry) will not occur in the future.
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ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
Introduction

SGL CARBON Aktiengesellschaft is incorporated as a stock corporation for unlimited duration under the laws of the Federal Republic of
Germany. SGL s registered office is at Rheingaustrasse 182, D-65203 Wiesbaden, Germany, telephone number +49-611-60-29-0. Our
English-language home page on the World Wide Web is at www.sglcarbon.com/index.html; this annual report does not incorporate information
found on our web site. Our fiscal year ends on December 31 of each year.

History and Development of the SGL Group

Our corporate origins lie in the second half of the 19th century. Two of the earliest industrial manufacturers of carbon products, Gebriider
Siemens & Co. (founded 1872) and the Plania Werke (founded 1896) merged in 1928 into the Siemens Plania Werke Aktiengesellschaft fiir
Kohlefabrikate. This company and its successors underwent a series of international mergers and acquisitions, becoming Sigri Great Lakes
Carbon GmbH, SGL s immediate predecessor company, in 1992. At that time, Hoechst AG was the majority shareholder of Sigri Great Lakes.

On December 21, 1994, Sigri Great Lakes Carbon GmbH became SGL CARBON Aktiengesellschaft through a change in corporate form
(Umwandlung). In April 1995, SGL s initial public offering took place on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. SGL became fully independent of
Hoechst in June 1996, when Hoechst divested substantially all of its ownership in SGL in a global placement of approximately 10.5 million

shares. Approximately 40% of that issue was placed in North America in the form of American Depositary Receipts ( ADRs ) which were listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (the NYSE ) under the symbol SGG until they were voluntarily delisted by SGL effective June 22, 2007. SGL
terminated its ADR program on June 25, 2007.

On May 25, 2007 SGL announced that it would voluntarily delist its ADRs from the NYSE effective June 22, 2007 and terminate its ADR
program effective June 25, 2007. In addition, SGL intends to deregister from its reporting obligations under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the Exchange Act ) as soon as provided for under new Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) rules.

We have completed several acquisitions and divestitures as part of our strategy to enhance what we believe, based on 2006 revenue, is our
position as one of the world s largest producers of carbon and graphite products and to concentrate our business on areas where we see growth
opportunities. The following are the significant acquisitions, divestitures and corporate changes that the SGL Group has made over the past three
years:

In February 2004, SGL CARBON Luxembourg S.A., Luxembourg, a subsidiary of the Issuer issued 270.0 million senior notes (the Old
Senior Notes ), as described in Item 10, Additional Information Material Contracts Old Senior Notes.

In 2004, in connection with the sale of the Surface Protection and Plastics Process Technology businesses, SGL CARBON Technic
LLC was established in the U.S. for the purpose of acquiring graphite process technology operations in that country.

In Poland, at fiscal year-end 2004, SGL ANGRAPH Sp.z 0.0 was merged with SGL CARBON POLSKA S.A; in Italy, SGL CARBON
Specialties S.p.A. was merged with SGL CARBON S.p.A.; and in the U.S., SGL Information- Services LLC was merged with SGL
CARBON LLC. In addition, Radion Finanziaria S.p.A., Milan, Italy, and SGL CARBON Finance Ltd., Dublin, Ireland, were dissolved
in 2004.

In January 2005, the surface technology and plastics process technology operations were divested.

In November and December 2005, two holding companies were created in Spain and Germany. We also intensified our activities in
India in 2005 with the creation of the subsidiary SGL CARBON INDIA Pvt. Ltd., in Pune.
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At the beginning of 2006, SGL Group agreed with Sinyuan Industrial Material Co., Ltd. (China) to set up a company ( SSG Ningbo Co.,
Ltd. ) for the manufacture of expanded graphite products for the Asian market. SGL Group holds 60% of the shares in the joint venture,
and Sinyuan Industrial Material Co., Ltd. holds 40%.

In March 2007, SGL Group signed a joint venture agreement with Lenzing AG, Austria, regarding the manufacture of a special
polyacrylonitrile ( PAN ) fiber precursor, a raw material required for the production of carbon fibers, in order to secure its long-term
supply of PAN. SGL is currently awaiting approval of the joint venture by the competent antitrust authorities.

In April 2007, SGL Group acquired a majority interest in F.A. Kiimpers GmbH (Germany), by which we gained access to innovative
technologies for processing carbon fibers into multi-axial fabrics.

In the second quarter of 2007, SGL Group and Tokai Carbon Co., Ltd. (Japan) further enhanced their cooperation by setting up a
company ( SGL Tokai Process Technology, Ltd. ) for the production and sale of process technology products for the Asian market, in
particular China, Japan and South Korea. SGL Group holds 51% and Tokai Carbon Co., Ltd. holds 49% of the shares in the company.

Capital expenditures

In the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we made capital expenditures and investments totaling 66.6 million, 47.0 million
and 47.1 million, respectively. Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment were 61.4 million in 2006, 39.4 million in 2005 and 37.7
million in 2004. Capital expenditures relating to intangible assets were 3.8 million in 2006 (mainly for internally developed software and the
capitalization of development costs), 5.3 million in 2005 and 8.8 million in 2004. Payments for non-current financial assets were 1.4 million in
2006, 2.3 million in 2005 and 0.8 million in 2004.

Capital expenditures in 2006 were primarily related to normal maintenance, cost reduction and efficiency improvements of operating facilities.
The main areas of investment included automation of individual processing steps, replacement and expansion of existing equipment,
environmental and safety investments as well as investments for relocating production activities from Italy and Germany to our facilities in
Poland. Capital expenditure has also been used to fund strategic organic growth, such as the construction of a new processing center in
Meitingen, Germany, preparatory work for the construction of the new production plant in Malaysia, and expansion of our capacities for carbon
fibers in Inverness, UK, and for isostatic graphite in Bonn, Germany. Capital expenditures during 2005 were related to normal maintenance and
efficiency improvements of the SGL Group s operating facilities. Major capital expenditures in 2004 were related to replacement and
maintenance of our plants in Germany, the United States, Poland and Italy.

We expect that expenses for expanding our capacities and upgrading our equipment will be significantly higher in 2007 than in previous years
arising from measures taken to realize the opportunities to expand into Southeast and East Asia, and on the basis of new product launches. For
the fiscal year 2007, we plan to make capital expenditures (excluding financial investments) totaling approximately 105 million. Of this amount,
we had made capital expenditures totaling approximately 14.4 million as of March 31, 2007. For the construction of our new plant in Malaysia,
capital expenditures of around 50 million are planned over a period of three years. We anticipate financing the capital expenditures largely
through cash flow from our operations.

Business Overview

The SGL Group is one of the world s leading carbon companies. It has a comprehensive product portfolio ranging from carbon and graphite
electrodes and cathodes through custom-made graphite-based products to innovative materials, products and solutions on the basis of carbon
fibers. Our customers are located throughout the industrialized world and operate in a wide range of industries, the most important being the
steel, aluminum, chemical, energy, semi-conductor, aerospace and defense as well as automotive industries. We provide our customers with a
global distribution network for our products and services covering more than 80 countries in 2006. As of the December
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31, 2006, the SGL Group operates 38 manufacturing facilities of which 19 are located in the European Union, 13 in North America, five in Asia
(i.e. China, India, Japan and South Korea) and one in Russia. In 2006, our sales revenue amounted to  1,190.8 million. Sales outside Germany
accounted for 84.9% of our total sales revenue in 2006. As of December 31, 2006, we had 5,249 employees.

Until February 1, 2007, the date on which our business realignment described below became effective, the SGL Group s organizational structure
consisted of three business areas: Carbon and Graphite,  Specialties and SGL Technologies :

The former Carbon and Graphite (now Performance Products) business area develops, manufactures and markets graphite electrodes for steel
production in electric arc furnaces, carbon electrodes for use in melting processes for other metallurgic applications, cathodes for use in
aluminum production, and furnace linings for pig iron production in blast furnaces. In 2006, sales revenue for the Carbon and Graphite business
area amounted to  716.1 million (60.1% of total sales revenue).

The former Specialties and SGL Technologies business areas are now combined in the new Advanced Materials business area. The former
Specialties business area (now part of the new Graphite Materials & Systems business unit, which also includes the expanded graphite carbon
activities of the former SGL Technologies business unit, as described under  Business Realignment below) develops, manufactures and markets a
wide selection of custom-made products based on fine-grain graphites for a large number of industrial sectors, primarily for customers in the
chemical, energy (specifically energy generation, energy management, and energy efficiency) and semiconductor industries. Products include
specialty graphites for heaters for the semiconductor industry, graphite parts for LED and solar cells production, as well as graphite for

lithium-ion batteries and for particle filters for diesel engines. In 2006, sales revenue for the Specialties business area amounted to 301.1 million
(representing 25.3% of total sales revenue).

The former SGL Technologies business area (now part of the new Carbon Fibers & Composites business unit, except for the expanded graphite
carbon activities of the former SGL Technologies as described under ~ Business Realignment below) develops, manufactures and markets
innovative materials, products and solutions on the basis of composite components and materials made from carbon fibers for a wide variety of
applications, including energy and industrial applications, as well as products for the aerospace and defense industry and the automotive
industry. Products include carbon fibers for high-temperature applications and for the reinforcement of cement and plastic, as well as carbon
ceramic brake discs. SGL Technologies covers the entire value chain for carbon fiber-based composites, from carbon fibers through composites
to components. We believe that we are the only European competitor in this market that can cover such a broad product portfolio. In 2006, sales
revenue for the SGL Technologies business area amounted to  171.3 million (representing 14.4% of total sales revenue).

Business Realignment

We realigned our business areas with effect from February 1, 2007 creating a new structure consisting of two business areas Performance

Products and Advanced Materials encompassing three business units: Performance Products, = Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers
& Composites. Performance Products corresponds to the former Carbon and Graphite business area and contains the new business unit

Performance Products. Advanced Materials comprises the former Specialties and SGL Technologies business areas which have been re-grouped

into the two remaining business units, Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers & Composites. Graphite Materials & Systems

comprises the activities of the former Specialties business area as well as the expanded natural graphite business line which was previously part

of the former SGL Technologies business area, while Carbon Fibers & Composites encompasses the carbon fiber and composites activities of

the former SGL Technologies business area.
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The following graph illustrates our business realignment:

The Performance Products business area serves established markets that are characterized by stable growth patterns, including the steel,
aluminum and other metallurgic industries. By contrast, the Advanced Materials business area serves a wide range of manufacturing industries
with a growing demand for carbon- and graphite-based products for an increasing number of innovative applications and has a high growth and
earnings potential.

We undertook this restructuring of our business areas to align our business structure with current trends in the industries we serve. A number of
factors, including rising raw material and energy prices, as well as supply shortages, environmental considerations and government regulation,
are leading to increasing demand from our customers for substitutes for conventional materials. Carbon- and graphite-based products have a
number of attributes, such as the ability to withstand high temperatures and extreme loads while being lightweight, that make them an attractive
replacement for other materials, in particular, for steel. We therefore expect demand for carbon- and graphite-based products to increase further
over the coming years, in particular in the market for green technologies applications in connection with wind and solar energy generation,
improvement of fuel and energy efficiency, environmental protection and innovative applications in the aircraft and automotive industries. We
intend to benefit from this demand for substitute materials in our Advanced Materials business by combining our innovative strength with our
broad base, our expertise in a broad range of materials and technologies.

Industry and Market Overview

We are active in a broad range of markets for carbon-based industrial products. Our Performance Products business area (formerly the Carbon &
Graphite business area, which accounted for 716.1 million, or 60.1% of our sales revenue in 2006), serves the metallurgical industries, including
the steel, primary aluminum and other non-ferrous metallurgical industries, such as silicon metal and phosphorous producers. By far the most
important customer industry of our Performance Products business area is the electric arc furnaces ( EAF ) and blast furnaces and blast oxygen
furnaces ( BF/BOF ) steel industry, which generated 605.1 million, or 84.5%, of the Performance Products business area s sales revenue in 2006.

76.0 million, or 10.6%, of the business area s sales revenue in 2006 was attributable to the aluminum industry and 35.0 million, or 4.9%, to other
metallurgical industries. The metallurgical industries are mature global industries, which have in the past tended to grow in a stable manner at
approximately the same rate as the economy as a whole (GDP growth), and are characterized by a certain degree of cyclicality.

Our Advanced Materials business area serves a wide range of manufacturing industries with a wide selection of custom-made graphite-based
products, as well as innovative materials, products and solutions on the basis of carbon fibers. Our Graphite Materials & Systems (former
Specialties and a part of former SGL Technologies) business unit s key industries include the chemical, energy
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(specifically energy generation, energy management, and energy efficiency) and semiconductor industries. Further customer industries of our
Graphite Materials & Systems business unit include the metallurgical, mechanical engineering, high-temperature processes and automotive
industries. Key industries of our Carbon Fibers & Composites business unit are the energy and industrial applications industry, as well as the
aerospace and defense industry and the automotive industry. Demand for products used in the manufacturing industries tends to fluctuate with
global and regional business cycles as well as industry-specific developments. We believe that these industries have potential for further growth.
In some manufacturing industries, such as the solar and wind energy industries, we believe that the market growth rate is well above GDP.

Metallurgical industries

Our products for the metallurgical industries include graphite electrodes and carbon-based furnace linings for the production of steel, cathode
blocks used in aluminum production, and carbon electrodes for the production of other non-ferrous metals. According to our estimates, the
worldwide market for our products for the metallurgical industries was approximately 3.5 billion in 2006. Graphite electrodes represent our
largest business, accounting for 79.6% of our Performance Products business area s sales revenue in 2006. Carbon products (i.e. furnace linings,
cathodes and carbon electrodes) accounted for the remainder of the business area s sales revenue in the same period.

Steel industry

We provide the steel industry with graphite electrodes, which are a necessary component of steel production in EAF, and carbon-based furnace
linings for BE/BOF used for steelmaking. EAF and BF/BOF steel production are the two primary steelmaking technologies with EAF
accounting for approximately 32% of total steel production in 2006. EAF steelmaking operations are commonly referred to as mini-mills
because their production capacity is generally smaller than that of BE/BOF facilities. Electric arc furnaces range in size from those producing
approximately 25 tons of steel per production cycle, or heat, to those producing approximately 150 tons per heat. Graphite electrodes act as
conductors of electricity in the furnace, generating sufficient heat to melt scrap metal or other material used to produce steel. EAF steelmaking is
generally regarded as more efficient and cost-effective than BF/BOF steelmaking. Although EAF production is unlikely to entirely replace
BF/BOF, a number of factors have favored its growth at the expense of the older technology. These include lower required investments, lower
energy consumption, greater environmental sustainability and technological advances.

Demand for both graphite electrodes and furnace linings is directly linked to the demand for finished steel. The steel industry is generally
cyclical in nature and experiences significant fluctuations based on numerous factors. However, the EAF steel industry and hence the graphite
electrodes market have generally been less cyclical than the BF/BOF steel industry and the furnace linings market. The cyclicality of the EAF
steel and graphite electrodes markets has become less pronounced in recent years. Due to the cost advantages of EAF steelmaking, graphite
electrodes are preferentially consumed in steel down cycles. Furnace linings are also preferentially consumed in steel down cycles, as furnaces
then tend to be relined for maintenance. Furthermore, as prices for scrap metal adjust to ensure EAF competitiveness, we expect steel producers
to prefer BOF production.

Since its development in the 1960s, mini-mill technology has produced a steadily increasing portion of total steel production. Due primarily to
the cost-effectiveness of EAF steelmaking, EAF steel production worldwide has grown steadily from 100 million tons in 1972 (approximately
16% of total steel production) to approximately 397 million tons in 2006 (approximately 32% of total steel production), according to the
estimates of market studies from the International Iron and Steel Institute (IISI) from 1972 to 2004 and our internal estimates for the years 2005
and 2006. We believe that the global share of EAF steel in total steel production will remain stable, and that long-term growth prospects for the
EAF steel industry are favorable, with annual EAF steel production growing in line with global GDP in the next five years.

The following table shows worldwide crude and EAF steel production in 1972, in 1980 and from 1990 through 2006.
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Worldwide Steel Production*

EAF

proportion

of

crude

Year Crude! EAF  production
(in thousands of tons) (%)

1972 632,009 99,749 16
1980 716,493 160,511 22
1990 770,694 215,124 28
1991 733,974 209,873 29
1992 719,398 210,508 29
1993 726,247 222,511 31
1994 723,958 229,063 32
1995 750,309 245,330 33
1996 750,611 249,741 33
1997 797,135 270,051 34
1998 778,032 266,144 34
1999 789,900 269,150 34
2000 849,200 293,600 35
2001 846,000 295,000 35
2002 903,800 304,600 34
2003 968,300 315,000 33
2004 1,060,000 347,000 32
2005 1,142,000 360,000 32
2006 1,244,000 397,000 32

*  Source: International Iron and Steel Institute for years 1972 to 2004; 2005 and 2006 figures are a company estimate.

1) Crude steel production refers to total steel production by all methods.

EAF steelmaking consumes graphite electrodes, for which we believe there are currently no substitute products. Beginning in the 1970s,
technological improvements reduced specific consumption, or the quantity of graphite electrodes consumed per metric ton of steel produced.
During the same period, graphite electrode manufacturing capacity began to expand. As a result, by the mid-1980s there was significant excess
manufacturing capacity in this industry. In the late 1980s and early 1990s, graphite electrode producers began to consolidate and to reduce
manufacturing capacity. As a result, supply and demand were generally in balance during the 1990s. In the late 1990s, however, external factors
began to adversely affect the graphite electrode industry, causing oversupply and price erosion. These factors included the Asian financial crises
of 1998 to 1999, the structural crisis in the U.S. and Japanese steel industries in 2001 and worldwide recessionary trends in 2002. Insolvencies of
graphite manufacturers in both Germany and the United States started another consolidation phase of the industry, including site closures. Due to
this consolidation and reduction of capacity as well as the growing demand of the steel industry in the period from 2003 until 2006, the graphite
electrode industry has begun to return to profitability.

Technological improvements in equipment design and production process, use of higher quality scrap metals and other raw materials and
improvements in the size, strength and quality of graphite electrodes (including significant improvements developed by the SGL Group) have
increased the efficiency and reduced the cost of EAF steel production. According to our estimates, these improved efficiencies have reduced
worldwide specific consumption. We expect that, as the cost of further marginal improvements in the efficiency of EAF steelmaking increases,
the rate of decline in specific consumption will grow more slowly. We believe that the long-term growth potential of EAF steel will be offset by
reductions in specific consumption due to further quality improvements of graphite electrodes, which will result in steady to slightly increased
demand for graphite electrodes over the long-term. In view of the increased consolidation and stability in the global steel market and the fact that
the graphite electrodes market is generally less cyclical than the steel market, we expect the graphite electrodes market to experience stable,
modest growth in the medium term, until China will begin to generate scrap.
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The manufacture of high-quality graphite electrodes is a mature, capital intensive business that requires extensive engineering know-how
developed over years of experience working with the various raw materials and their suppliers, furnace manufacturers and steelmakers
(including working on the specific applications for finished electrodes). It also requires high-quality raw material sources and a developed
energy supply infrastructure. There have been no significant new entrants in the
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manufacture of graphite electrodes since the 1940s and we believe that it is unlikely that there will be significant new entrants in the market over
the next several years. According to our estimates, our share of the worldwide market for graphite electrodes was approximately 20% in 2006.
We believe that our regular customers for graphite electrodes include most of the world s major EAF steel producers, including Arcelor Mittal,
Riva, Lion, Alcoa and Tenaris.

Our main markets for furnace linings are Europe, Asia and North America. Furnace linings, which are recently experiencing modest growth,
typically account for a modest portion of our business. A modern furnace design can be used for more than ten years of furnace operation before
it becomes necessary to replace the linings.

Aluminum industry

Cathode blocks and other products are used to equip electrolysis cells for the production of primary aluminum. Demand for cathode blocks
therefore varies directly with the demand for primary aluminum. In the past aluminum producers had very modest growth, but that growth has
recently accelerated to approximately 5% p.a. This was primarily due to the general increase in energy costs which boosted demand for
aluminum as a light-weight and low-cost, yet high performance material. Demand for cathodes for relining and new smelters accelerated in 2006
in line with the growth of demand for aluminum. We expect the aluminum industry to continue to grow in the medium-term.

We sell cathodes to all major aluminum smelters worldwide. According to our estimates, in 2006 our share of the market for cathodes in general
was nearly one quarter by sales and of the market for graphitized cathodes nearly one third by sales.

Non-ferrous metallurgical industries

Carbon electrodes serve as conductors of electricity in a furnace to generate sufficient heat to reduce silicon dioxide in a continuous process. The
production of silicon metal in furnaces that use carbon electrodes involves a process similar to that used for graphite electrodes, but at lower
temperatures.

Demand for carbon electrodes is directly related to the volume of silicon and phosphorus production. The main drivers of the silicon and
phosphorus markets are the needs of silicon for the semiconductor, solar, fertilizer and other industries. Silicon and phosphorus production, and
hence demand for carbon electrodes, has been relatively stable since the early 1990s. In 2001, demand declined significantly, primarily as a
result of the energy crisis in Brazil. Demand for carbon electrodes returned to stability in 2002. After a period of rather stable global demand
between 2003 and 2005, demand increased in 2006, which lead to higher prices.

The manufacture of high-quality carbon electrodes is a mature, capital intensive business that requires extensive engineering know-how
developed over years of experience working with the various raw materials and their suppliers, furnace manufacturers and steelmakers
(including working on the specific applications for finished electrodes). It also requires high-quality raw material sources and a developed
energy supply infrastructure. There have been no significant new entrants in the manufacture of carbon electrodes since the 1940s. Our primary
markets for carbon electrodes are the Americas and Europe. According to our estimates, in 2006 our share of the worldwide market for carbon
electrodes by sales was nearly half.

Manufacturing industries

Our key manufacturing industries are the chemical, energy (specifically energy generation, energy management, and energy efficiency),
semiconductor, aerospace and defense, and automotive industries.

Chemical industry

Our main products for the chemical industry include expanded graphite gaskets and foils for sealing applications, as well as heat exchangers,
columns, pumps and synthesis units from our process technology business line. Our main products for the electronic materials industry include
graphite parts (crucibles and molds) for LED (light emitting diode) production, and graphite for lithium-ion batteries. We have seen strong
demand and growth in the battery markets, especially in Asia, in the
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last three years. We expect LEDs to play an increasingly significant role in lighting applications due to the global trend to optimize energy
efficiency.

Energy industry

Our main products for the energy industry are graphite crucibles and molds for solar energy production, SiC-coated wafer-carriers for
solar-cells, expanded graphite for thermal management, and carbon composite materials for windmill rotor blades. We have a leading position in
graphite products for the solar markets in both Europe and North America. Strong demand and growth has been observed in solar markets. We
estimate that our global market share was approximately 20% in 2006. We expect that the trend towards bigger blades in the windmill industry
will significantly increase the demand for industrial grade carbon fibers and composite materials.

Semiconductor industry

Our products for the semiconductor industry include specialty graphites for semiconductor products, such as heaters, crucibles and susceptors.
Demand in the semiconductor market is highly cyclical. After a downturn during 2001 and 2002, the semiconductor market has recovered over
the last three years. According to management estimates we have a strong position in graphite products for the semiconductor markets in both
Europe and North America.

Aerospace and defense industry

Our products for the aerospace and defense industry include a broad range of composite components for military and commercial aircraft, as
well as rocket nozzles for propulsion systems and products for armoring applications.

Automotive industry

Our main products for the automotive industry are carbon-ceramic brake discs, fuel cell components, and graphite for particle filters for diesel
engines. The automotive markets are growing only moderately in Europe, North America and Japan but strongly in China. While our traditional
home markets were in Europe, we are now looking for expansion into other regions as well. We estimate that our global market share in 2006
was approximately 10%. Although the market for high-performance carbon-ceramic brake discs is in the initial stages of development, we have
already built an attractive customer base consisting of clients such as Audi and Porsche. We believe that the market for our fuel cell components,
which are currently in the research and development phase, also have significant potential for growth. In the long-term, development of this
business and of the fuel cell component industry in general, is dependent on the achievement of significant reductions in fuel cell production and
distribution costs

Competitive Position of the SGL Group

The carbon and graphite industry is highly competitive with competition based primarily on price, product quality and customer service. Of the
major manufacturers of carbon and graphite products worldwide the SGL Group is the largest, based on its 2006 sales revenue, according to
management estimates.

Performance Products

Of the major manufacturers worldwide of graphite electrodes, our principal product, the SGL Group and GrafTech International Ltd. ( GrafTech )
(formerly UCAR International Inc.) are the largest on the basis of metric tons produced. In addition to the SGL Group and GrafTech, there are
graphite electrode manufacturers in the United States (two), Japan (four) and several in Russia, India and China. We estimate that our share of

the global market for graphite electrodes was approximately 20% (in terms of volume) in 2006.

We believe that we are one of the largest manufacturers of carbon electrodes worldwide. According to our estimates, we supplied a significant
market share of the worldwide market for carbon electrodes (without composite electrodes) in 2006.

Approximately ten manufacturers compete in the global market for cathodes used in the primary aluminum industry. We estimate that our share
of the cathodes market was nearly one
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quarter by sales, and of the market for graphitized cathodes nearly one third by sales, at the end of 2006. Other major manufacturers include
Alcan, Nippon Carbon, SEC Corporation, the Vesuvius Group and a few Chinese manufacturers.

Advanced Materials
Graphite Materials & Systems

The graphite products market is served by many competitors with different product ranges and value added segments. We believe that
globally-oriented international companies, including the SGL Group, Le Carbone Lorraine, Toyo Tanso, Tokai Carbon, Morgan Crucible, Poco
and the Schunk Group account for more than two-thirds of the total market volume worldwide. A significant part of the market is served by
small, local machine shops, which machine and finish goods supplied to them by the major graphite producers in a semi-finished state. We
believe that we have a leading position in the supply of graphite and CFRC products for electronic and industrial applications in Europe and
North America. The process technology market is highly fragmented with many locally-based, often family-owned smaller companies. Our main
competitors in the market for carbon-based process equipment applications are Le Carbone Lorraine and Graphite India. Key competitors in the
market for expanded graphite products are GrafTech and Le Carbone Lorraine.

Carbon Fibers & Composites

Our Carbon Fibers & Composites business unit competitors are carbon-based advanced materials and composites companies. Our main
competitors for fiber products are Zoltek, Toho and Formosa. In the market segments for carbon composites the key competitors include
Thiokol, Hexcel, ATPX and Cytec.

Our Business Areas and Business Units
Performance Products

Our Performance Products business area (formerly the Carbon & Graphite business area, which accounted for approximately 60% of our sales
revenue in 2006) is our core business segment. It comprises the production and marketing of our established carbon and graphite products. Our
carbon and graphite products are based on petroleum coke, coal tar, petroleum pitch and anthracite coal which are our primary raw materials,
and have many exceptional properties that we optimize for various applications through our manufacturing processes. Our carbon and graphite
products exhibit stability under high temperatures, are non-corrosive and conduct heat and electricity. As a result, these products are used in a
wide range of applications.

Following the organizational realignment as of February 1, 2007, the Performance Products business area consists of two business lines, graphite
and carbon electrodes, and cathodes and furnace linings. Key products are:

Graphite electrodes, used primarily in electric arc furnace or EAF steel production, the steelmaking technology used by virtually all
mini-mills , as well as in some ladle furnaces and foundries. Steel production requires temperatures as high as 2,760° Celsius to melt

scrap metal, iron ore or other raw materials for processing. Electricity passing through our electrodes creates an electric arc that

generates these extreme temperatures. The electrodes, which vary in size depending on the individual furnace s requirements, are

consumed regularly in the production process. We believe that we provide the full range of sizes in graphite electrodes (our key product

being 800 mm graphite electrodes), and that their quality is equal to, or in specific segments, better than, that of any other manufacturer s

products. We further believe that there are currently no commercially viable substitutes for graphite electrodes in EAF steelmaking.

Carbon electrodes, used primarily to produce silicon metal. Electrodes vary in size but are typically larger than the graphite electrodes
used in EAF steelmaking and require a different manufacturing process. A typical silicon metal furnace consumes three carbon
electrodes every five days.
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Cathode blocks and related products, used to equip electrolysis cells for the production of primary aluminum. Cathode blocks require a
significant degree of custom fitting. Newly constructed aluminum smelters tend to require larger electrolysis cells than older facilities.
We believe that we are equipped to meet this trend in demand.

Furnace linings, used for wall protection and heat conduction in the hotter areas of blast furnaces used to produce liquid pig iron, an
intermediary material in the production of steel from iron ore. Although modern furnace design allows ten or more years of operation
before lining replacement becomes necessary, a typical furnace will have its lining replaced a number of times over its useful life.

Graphite electrodes are our largest business, accounting for approximately 80% of the sales revenues in our Performance Products business area
in 2006, while carbon products (i.e. furnace linings, cathodes and carbon electrodes) accounted for 20% of the business area s sales revenue.

In order to further strengthen our core graphite electrodes business, we are currently constructing a new graphite electrodes production hub in
Malaysia which we expect to start production in 2008. The new plant will have the dual advantages of state-of-the-art technology, allowing us to
preserve our high level of product quality, while also providing us with a low-cost base due to low local energy and labor costs. We intend to
integrate the new production site into our global production network and make it our fully integrated production hub in Asia from which we can
target the regional Southeast Asian markets as well as India, South Korea and Taiwan, benefiting from the optimal logistics afforded by the
geographical location in Southeast Asia. Initially the annual production capacity will be approximately 30,000 metric tons, which can be
expanded to up to approximately 60,000 metric tons.

With regard to our cathodes business, we intend to grow with our key partners in the aluminum industry and leverage our global production
infrastructure to satisfy the growing demand for graphitized cathodes. We also expect to be able to benefit from our capability to swing between
the production of graphitized cathodes and graphite electrodes and thereby adjust production to fluctuations in demand for either product.

Advanced Materials

Our Advanced Materials business area (formerly the Specialties and SGL Technologies business areas, which accounted for approximately 40%

of our sales revenue in 2006) comprises the production and marketing of carbon and graphite-based products and materials for diverse

applications in manufacturing industries, continuing to combine our innovative strength with our expertise in a broad range of materials and
technologies. In markets that are increasingly demanding greener substitutes for established materials, carbon fiber and graphite-based products
provide an attractive alternative to conventional materials, particularly steel, due to their qualities of being able to withstand high temperatures

and extreme loads while being lightweight. We therefore expect demand for carbon and graphite-based products to increase further over the

coming years, in particular for green technologies applications in connection with wind and solar energy generation, improvement of fuel- and
energy efficiency, environmental protection and innovative applications in the aircraft and automotive industries. We intend to benefit from this
demand for substitute materials in our Advanced Materials business by combining our innovative strength with our broad base , our expertise in a
broad range of materials and technologies.

Graphite Materials & Systems

Our Graphite Materials & Systems business unit largely corresponds to the former Specialties business area, which accounted for approximately
25% of our sales revenue in 2006. Customer industries include the chemical, energy (specifically energy generation, energy management, and
energy efficiency) and semiconductor industries, as well as the metallurgical, mechanical engineering, high-temperature processes and
automotive industries. Approximately one-third of the Specialties business area s revenues in 2006 was attributable to products launched within
the last four years, such as specialty graphites for heaters for the semiconductor industry, graphite parts for LED and solar cells production, as
well as graphite for lithium-ion batteries and particle filters for diesel engines.
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Following the organizational realignment as of February 1, 2007, our Graphite Materials & Systems business unit consists of three business
lines: graphite specialties, process technology and expanded graphite.

Our graphite specialties business line develops and manufactures a wide variety of advanced materials customized to serve a number of
applications, including electronic, industrial, high-temperature, automotive and mechanical applications. Our products for electronic applications
include components made of high-purity fine-grain graphite, felt and CFRC for the semiconductor, solar energy and LED industries, as well as
for power and thermal management solutions. Our product range for industrial applications consists of parts made of extruded, isostatically, die
and vibration molded graphite, high purity graphite, soft and rigid felt and CFRC for tool manufacturing, glass and ceramics industry, ferrous
and non-ferrous metallurgy, refractory manufacturing, electrochemistry, the nuclear industry and medical technology. For high-temperature
applications we supply mold stock and machined graphite parts, CFRC, soft and rigid felt, graphite foils and sheets for heat treatment
applications, aerospace and chemical process technology. For automotive and mechanical applications we supply mold stock and mechanical
components made of carbon graphite, graphite and graphite-filled high performance plastics for the automotive industry, household appliances,
mechanical engineering as well as powder and granules for compounding.

Products of our process technology business line comprise heat exchangers, columns, pumps, quenchers, bursting discs and HCI (Hydrogen
Chlorine) synthesis units made of DIABON! process equipment graphite as well as pumps made of exotic metals and LICUFLON! PTFE
(PolyTetraFluorEthylen), Teflon-lined vessels and columns for corrosive applications in the chemical, environmental, mining, pulp, energy,
pharmaceutical and agricultural industries. Furthermore we offer complete engineered systems made from DIABON and LICUFLON.

Our expanded graphite business line primarily manufactures foils that are based on natural graphite and can withstand extremely high
temperatures and aggressive corrosion. These foils are used in sealing applications as an alternative to asbestos, as well as in sealing technology
in the automobile construction industry and the chemical industry. In addition, milled exfoliated products based on natural graphite can be used
for the growing market of fillers, for example in high-performance batteries, as well as in a variety of other areas of application in which
electrical and thermal conductivity is important. Our most recent product based on expanded natural graphite is ECOPHIT™, launched in March
2007. ECOPHIT™ is an innovative graphite construction material that can be used to improve the performance of existing air conditioning
systems in buildings and to develop innovative heat distribution and heat storage systems. The ECOPHIT™ product family includes both foils
and plates of different thickness, as well as granules and powder. Furthermore, phase change materials and graphite composite materials are
manufactured from these products and used in high-performance thermal energy storage systems.

Over the last few years, we have been able to improve our cost position through site specialization, simplification of production and product
portfolio, headcount reduction and continuous improvement programs. Now the strategic focus of our Graphite Materials & Systems business
unit is on strengthening our production presence and market share in Asia and Eastern Europe, increasing sales by developing and marketing
innovative products and applications, particularly for green technologies , and continuing to implement our cost-saving and margin-improving
strategy. In particular, we intend to increase our capacity for the production of extruded and isostatically molded graphite, increase sales of our
process technology products in Asia and Russia, and optimize our production infrastructure for expanded graphite products in the EU, North
America and Asia. In line with this strategy we set up a company together with Sinyuan Industrial Material Co., Ltd. (China) at the beginning of
2006 for the manufacture of expanded graphite products for the Asian market. SGL Group holds 60% of the shares in the joint venture, and
Sinyuan Industrial Material Co., Ltd. holds 40%. Furthermore, in the middle of 2006, we set up a joint venture with Tokai Carbon Co., Ltd.
(Japan) for the production and sale of process technology products for the Asian market, in particular China, Japan and South Korea. SGL Group
holds 51% of the shares in the joint venture, and Tokai Carbon Co., Ltd. holds 49%.
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Carbon Fibers & Composites

The new Carbon Fibers & Composites business unit largely corresponds to our former SGL Technologies business area, which accounted for
approximately 15% of our sales revenue in 2006. Key customer industries are energy and industrial applications and the aerospace and defense,
and automotive industries, which we serve with innovative materials, products and solutions on the basis of composite components and materials
made from carbon fibers for a wide variety of applications. We cover the entire value chain of carbon fiber-based composites, from carbon fibers
through composites to components. Key products include carbon fibers for the construction of windmill blades, high-temperature applications
and for the reinforcement of cement and plastic, as well as carbon-ceramic brake discs.

Following the organizational realignment as of February 1, 2007, our Carbon Fibers & Composites business unit consists of four business lines
which manufacture carbon fibers, brake discs, composite materials and composite components.

Carbon fibers serve as base materials in the manufacture of products that must be both stiff and lightweight, and able to conduct heat and
electricity, particularly in the aviation and aerospace industries. We produce carbon fibers in two forms, i.e. oxidized fibers and carbonized
fibers. Oxidized fibers are used in high performance carbon-carbon aircraft brakes as well as for specialty flame-retardant insulation
applications. Carbonized fibers are used primarily in chopped form as reinforcement in thermoplastic housings, such as mobile telephone and
printer and laptop computer housings. Industrial grade continuous carbon fibers are used as reinforcement in blades for windmill applications.

Carbon composites includes carbon fiber reinforced plastics ( CFRP ). CFRP are used in medical equipment and in the textile and wire making
industries. The composite materials and components we produce range from relatively standard carbon or fiberglass reinforced plastics, used for
x-ray tables and secondary aircraft structures, to high performance, high temperature composites used for rocket motor nozzles.

Our carbon ceramic automotive brakes (carbon ceramic discs) are made from a ceramic composite material, composed of carbon fiber within a
silicon carbide matrix and are called carbon fiber-reinforced silicon carbide or C/SiC. The main advantages of the carbon ceramic discs are a
very high and consistent friction performance and significant lower weight compared to traditional automotive brake discs. Carbon-ceramic
discs are designed to last much longer than ordinary brake discs. Carbon Fibers & Composites began batch production of carbon-ceramic brake
discs in a newly constructed plant in 2002 to serve the increasing demand from Porsche. Since mid-2005 we also supply discs for high-end
automobiles produced by Audi. In 2006, the complexity of the brake disc business further increased due to additional car-model launches.

We intend to strengthen our position in the global carbon fiber market and become one of the leading manufacturers of carbon fibers and
composites and relevant semi-finished products for the wind energy and automotive industries. We also aim to increase demand for our
composite components from the aerospace and defense industries, and expand our portfolio of brake discs products. Measures designed to
achieve our strategic goals include capacity expansion and targeted acquisitions and cooperation with partners from our customer industries for
jointly developing customized final applications as well as finished parts and manufacturing techniques.

In order to increase our capacity for the production of directly processable carbon fiber based prepregs (carbon fiber materials that are
impregnated with resins and used for the manufacture of carbon fiber composite components), we commissioned a state-of-the-art production
site in Meitingen, Germany in December 2006. The new production facility allows us to expand the range of prepregs to larger applications and
from niches into already established and growing markets. In addition, we have secured the long-term supply of raw materials for the production
of carbon fibers through our joint venture with Lenzing AG, Austria. Furthermore, we plan to start operation of a new carbon fiber production
line in August 2007 and two more lines by 2008. We believe that these measures will increase our carbon fiber production capacity from 2,400
tons at present to 6,600 tons by the end of 2010.
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Furthermore, in line with our strategy we entered into joint ventures for the development of innovative carbon-fiber based products for the
automotive and wind energy industries. We acquired a majority interest in company with with F.A. Kiimpers GmbH in April 2007 through
which we have also gained access to innovative technologies for processing carbon fibers into multi-axial fabrics. We believe that these
technologies will allow us access to large potential markets for carbon fibers, in particular, in the automotive and wind energy industries. Our
strategic alliance with the Japanese Mitsubishi Rayon Corp. has already brought about the successful launch of a high-quality multi-filament
carbon fiber in early 2007. Compared to the low-filament fibers already on the market, production of the new multi-filament fiber is particularly
cost-effective while preserving the high standard of quality. We have concluded long-term purchase agreements with a major customer from the
wind energy industry based on this high-quality multi-filament carbon fiber.

Seasonality

Our sales revenue from graphite electrodes fluctuates from quarter to quarter due to factors related to our customers businesses, such as customer
inventory levels, scheduled customer plant shutdowns and vacations, and changes in customer production schedules in response to seasonal
changes in customer energy costs, strikes and work stoppages by our customers employees. In addition, customers may change their order
patterns in response to price changes. During the period prior to the effective date of a price increase, customers tend to buy additional quantities
of graphite electrodes at the then lower price, which adds to our sales revenue during that period. During the period following the effective date

of a price increase, customers tend to use those additional quantities before placing further orders, which reduces our sales revenue during that
period. Similarly, customers tend to use up their inventories and delay purchases when they expect price reductions.

Raw Materials and Suppliers

The primary raw materials for graphite electrodes and graphite specialties products are petroleum coke (needle coke for electrodes and regular
grades for specialty products), coal tar pitch and petroleum pitch. The primary raw materials for carbon electrodes are anthracite coal and coal
tar pitch and, in some instances, a petroleum coke-based material. The primary raw material for flexible graphite is natural graphite flake, which
is obtained primarily from China and Canada. Due to the wider range of technological products our Carbon Fibers & Composites business area
produces, various key raw materials are required. In the case of carbon fibers, for example, these are polyacrylonitrile ( PAN ) fiber precursors,
while the production of foils is based mainly on natural graphite.

The availability of high-quality raw materials is limited, and the market for our primary raw material petroleum coke, in particular needle coke,
is dominated by a small number of large suppliers with substantial market power. This market may undergo further consolidation. We source all
our raw materials from a variety of suppliers, including the most important petroleum coke suppliers. We have established strong ties to these
suppliers and cooperated with them on the implementation of joint quality monitoring and improvement programs for many years. Procurement
agreements with key suppliers, especially of needle coke, are for the most part annual, with most of our annual agreements having been regularly
renewed in recent years. Our procurement agreements generally provide for fixed or minimum purchase quantities, by which we have managed
to secure stable volumes of supply. Prices in annual agreements are usually fixed and renegotiated in case of renewal, while in case of
agreements with a term of more than one year prices are calculated according to specified mechanisms on the basis of defined parameters such
as suppliers raw material prices, particularly crude oil prices, and SGL s average sales prices. Furthermore, in order to secure our long-term
supply of the raw materials required for the production of carbon fibers we have signed a joint venture with Lenzing AG, Austria, in March 2007
and are currently awaiting approval of the joint venture by the competent antitrust authorities. In this joint venture, a special polyacrylonitrile
(PAN) fiber precursor, a raw material for carbon fibers, will be manufactured which will make us independent of the purchase of this raw
material for carbon fibers from third parties. In view of the foregoing, we believe that, under current conditions, we have secured our required
supplies of raw materials at adequate quantities.
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We purchase electric power and natural gas used in our manufacturing processes from national as well as local power supply companies. In
recent years, prices for petroleum coke have gone through cycles of both volatility and stability. During these times, we have mitigated the effect
of price increases by improving operating efficiency and by implementing cost-cutting measures and hedging arrangements, such as long-term
supply agreements for electric power and natural gas, as well as hedges for natural gas.

Marketing Channels and Customer Service

We sell our Performance Products in our local markets primarily through our direct sales force, which operates from our sales offices and is
supported by our own customer service personnel. The SGL Group s local sales organizations or local independent sales agents service export
customers with the assistance of our direct sales force. Most of these independent sales agents have worked with the SGL Group for many years.

In the Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers & Composites business units, we make the majority of our sales through our specialized
sales organizations specifically dedicated to each such business area. We also use independent exclusive sales agents in certain locations. From
time to time, the Performance Products sales organization also assists in sales of Graphite Materials & Systems products, particularly outside of
Europe and North America.

Since we are globally oriented with a diverse customer base, we regularly hold regional conferences to present and discuss our business
strategies, targets and philosophy with our representatives in Germany and throughout the world.

For many years, we have been strongly committed to supporting our sales activity by providing a high level of customer service. As with our
sales and distribution organizations, each of our customer service personnel is specifically dedicated to one of our three business areas. In
addition to providing basic support services, we also assist our customers with their technical problems, focusing on the design and operation of
production equipment (such as EAF technology), as well as on specifications for and use of our products. Since 1992 we have established
long-term cooperation arrangements with several key customers to focus on technical improvements and product development.

To our key accounts, we generally sell our products on the basis of annual framework sales agreements. These agreements usually provide for

fixed prices. During the term of the agreement, the customers place orders in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement. Our

customers in the Performance Products business area generally place orders for electrodes three to six months prior to the specified delivery date

pursuant to their forecasted full-year demand. We manufacture and manage electrode inventory levels on the basis of rolling sales forecasts.

Other products, particularly in the Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers & Composites business units, are generally manufactured to

order. Finished products are generally stored at our manufacturing facilities. We ship products to customers primarily overland and by sea, using
justin time techniques where practicable.

Dependence on Patents or Licenses, Industrial, Commercial or Financial Contracts

We own over 300 patents registered in the United States, Europe and in other major world markets and have numerous applications pending for
new technologies and processes. Our activities are continuously complemented by a global patent strategy in order to secure technology and
market positions at an early stage. We thus applied for 95 new patents in 2006, 28 of which were for new inventions (compared to 18 the
previous year). In addition, we have obtained licenses to various domestic and foreign patents. These patents, patent applications and licenses
are, in the aggregate, important to our competitive position, and the loss of a great number of patents worldwide could have a material adverse
effect on our business. In our Carbon Fibers & Composites business area we depend to a significant extent on patents and licenses (see Item 3,

Risk Factors  Risks Relating to Our Business We may not be able to protect the intellectual property which may be important for the
development of our Advanced Materials business area ). However, we believe that we are not currently dependent on any individual patent or
license or group of patents or licenses in our established business areas.
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Manufacturing Processes and Operations

The manufacture of graphite electrodes takes, on average, approximately two months. Graphite electrodes range in size from three inches to 32
inches in diameter and two feet to nine feet in length and weigh between 20 pounds and 4,800 pounds (2.2 metric tons). Carbon electrodes,
cathodes and furnace linings are manufactured in a process comparable to that for graphite electrodes, except that impregnation and
graphitization are used only for particular grades of cathodes and furnace linings.

The manufacture of graphite electrodes involves the following six primary processes:

Forming Calcined petroleum coke is crushed, screened, sized and blended in a heated vessel with coal tar pitch, applying highly
specialized techniques. The resulting plastic mass is extruded through a forming press and cut into cylindrical lengths (called green
electrodes) before cooling in a water bath.

Baking The green electrodes are baked at approximately 900° Celsius in specially designed furnaces to further carbonize the pitch. After
cooling, the electrodes are cleaned, inspected and sample-tested.

Impregnation Baked electrodes are impregnated with a special pitch when higher density, mechanical strength and capability to withstand
higher electric currents are required.

Rebaking The impregnated electrodes are rebaked to coke out the pitch, thereby adding strength to the electrodes.

Graphitizing The rebaked electrodes are heated in longitudinal electric resistance furnaces at approximately 3,000° Celsius to restructure
the carbon to its characteristically crystalline form, graphite. After this process, the electrodes are gradually cooled, cleaned, inspected and
sample-tested.

Machining After graphitizing, the electrodes are machined to comply with international specifications governing outside diameters, overall
lengths and joint details. Tapered sockets are machine-threaded at each end of the electrode to permit the joining of electrodes in columns by
means of correspondingly double-tapered machine-threaded graphite connecting pins.

The production of a variety of graphite specialties grades generally follows a process similar to that used for graphite electrodes, but uses
additional forming techniques (such as isostatic and die molding), additional treatments like purification and more intricate machining. Specialty
graphite products use different mixtures of raw materials due to fine grain formulations and different processing time periods.

Expanded graphite is made from mined natural graphite flake, which is acid-treated, heat-treated and rolled into sheets of desired thickness and
width and produced in highly specialized production lines. Fibers and composites that use polymer raw materials also require highly
sophisticated and highly specialized facilities, in addition our main production lines for carbon and graphite products. Our high temperature
technology expertise is essential for the manufacture of graphite fibers and composites.

Carbon fibers are based on PAN, which in a first step is thermally stabilized under oxygen at approximately 200-300° Celsius. The resulting
oxidized fibers are already a saleable product. In a second step, oxidized fibers can be carbonized under nitrogen at approximately 1,200-1,400°
Celsius. The resulting materials are carbon fibers which can either be prepared for sale on spools and in boxes or further processed by chopping,
weaving and filament winding.

We use statistical process controls in all manufacturing processes and have implemented a quality management program that involves
continuous in-house training. We generally warrant to our customers that our products will meet the SGL Group s and the customers
specifications. With the exception of 1997, in which we conducted a recall of graphite electrodes in North America due to a defect in a new
piece of production equipment at one of our U.S. production sites, electrode returns and replacements have to date amounted to less than 1% of
our sales revenue.
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Government Regulation

Our domestic and international manufacturing facilities and operations are subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations as well as
administrative orders relating to alleged prior violations of laws or regulations. These legislation and orders could require us to install additional
controls for certain emission sources or to change our manufacturing processes in future years. We believe we possess all material permits
necessary for the current operation of our facilities. Although we believe that we are currently in material compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and permits, our operations, like those of our competitors, involve certain environmental risks.

We seek to minimize environmental risk by developing, implementing and improving material resources, production and abatement techniques.

Using advanced techniques, we aim to improve working conditions and reduce the environmental impact of our own operations and those of our
customers businesses. Our goal is to comply with the European Union s Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control ( IPPC ) directive while at the
same time creating economically and technically viable conditions to assure long-term competitiveness. We augment the efforts of our internal
auditors, research and development team and operations supervisors with periodic, active cooperation with national and international state

agencies and organizations. We have adjusted the organization of our environmental team to create an integrated Environmental, Health &

Safety Audit ( EHSA ) management system tailored to the demands of our industry. Our goal is to achieve internal standards according to ISO
14001, generally recognized as the highest standard in this field. We use our Internal Management and Audit System for continuous EHSA Risk
Assessment in our efforts to achieve permanent, sustainable improvements in performance.

International regulations govern the transportation of hazardous goods. Air pollution, wastewater, solid waste and occupational health and safety
are generally regulated by national laws. In the European Union, these areas are generally covered by EU directives and guidelines. In particular,
the EU s IPPC directive requires certain industries, including the carbon and graphite industry, to implement advanced techniques. The IPPC
directive does not itself create binding regulation. Rather, it serves as a framework for regulators in the EU member states in establishing
national regulations. Although national-level implementation of the IPPC directive may lead to more restrictive national environmental
regulations, based on our experience in Germany we believe that national regulations based on the IPPC directive will tend to be more lenient
than those proposed in the directive itself. We believe that we are in compliance, or in the process of achieving compliance, with the heightened
requirements of IPPC directive-based regulation.

In Germany we are subject to environmental laws and regulations including the Federal Pollution Control Act, the Water Resources
Management Act and the Waste Act. Under these statutes and their related bodies of regulation, the authorities may inspect our production sites
every one to three years. We must also comply with the Plant Security Act, the Employment Security Act, Regulations for the Prevention of
Accidents and the Toxic Substances Control Act (which includes technical regulations on hazardous substances) and the Dangerous Chemicals
Ordinance.

Similar laws are already in force in Austria, Italy and a number of other EU countries; France and Spain are in the process of adopting new laws
to comply with EU requirements. We expect that most European national environmental laws and regulations will be replaced over the near- to
medium-term by common EU requirements (or by national regulations based on EU directives). National governments will remain free to adopt
requirements stricter than those required by the EU.

With regard to the regulation of chemicals, the new EU regulation (EC) no. 1907/2006 of December 18, 2006, concerning the registration,
evaluation, authorization and restriction of chemicals ( REACH ), imposes a new regulatory framework for the manufacture, importation and use
of chemical substances in the EU which may entail increased compliance costs. Under the REACH regulation, enterprises manufacturing or
importing a chemical substance in quantities exceeding one ton per year in or to the EU market are required to register the substance with the
European Chemicals Agency by submitting comprehensive information on the properties of the substance and on how to effectively manage the
risks entailed by the use of the substance for evaluation by the Agency. To this end, manufacturers and importers have to gather the relevant
information and conduct safety assessments. Down-stream users of chemicals must implement the risk management measures for dangerous
substances identified by suppliers. Failure to register means that the substance
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cannot be manufactured in or imported to the EU market. Currently about 30,000 substances are traded in the EU market at quantities exceeding
one ton, and are therefore potentially covered by the REACH regulation. For approximately 1,500 substances of very high concern (carcinogens,
mutagens, substances toxic to the reproductive system, substances which are persistent, bio-accumulative, and toxic, substances which are very
persistent and very bio-accumulative, or substances of equivalent concern), an authorization may be required. Substances identified for
authorization may only be manufactured, imported or used after the so-called sunset-date by companies which have obtained an authorization for
a particular use. If the use of a substance entails unacceptable risks to the health or the environment, that substance may either on its own, in a
preparation or a processed article be subject to EU-wide restrictions for use in certain products or for consumers or for all uses. The REACH
regulation became effective on June 1, 2007; pre-registration of substances will take place from June 1, 2008 until December 1, 2008, and will

be followed by three registration deadlines (on November 30, 2010, May 31, 2013, and May 31, 2018) for different categories of substances,
depending on the volume band or level of concern of the substance. New substances need to be registered before they can be marketed in the

EU; registration will start on June 1, 2008. The European Commission s Impact Assessment in 2003 estimated the direct costs of REACH to the
chemicals industry at a total of approximately 2.3 billion over an eleven year period. Since then, according to the European Commission changes
in the proposed regulation have further reduced the administrative and cost burden for companies, in particular for those supplying substances in
lower volumes and for small and medium enterprises. Furthermore, within twelve months of entry into force of REACH the Commission will
review Annexes IV and V of the REACH regulation listing the substances exempted from registration where sufficient information is known and
the risk is minimal, or exempted from registration under the current legislation.

In the United States we are subject to environmental requirements including those imposed by the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Safe Drinking Water Act and similar federal, state and local laws regulating air emissions, water
discharges and solid and hazardous waste generation, storage, transportation and disposal. The Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (Superfund) and similar state laws can impose joint and several liability for releases of hazardous
substances into the environment, without regard to fault or the lawfulness of the original activity. Categories of potentially responsible parties
can include current or former owners and operators of a contaminated site and companies that generated or sent waste to a site. The Toxic
Substances Control Act and related laws are designed to assess the risk to health and the environment of new products at early developmental
stages. In addition, laws adopted or proposed in various states impose reporting or remediation requirements if historical contamination is
discovered, operations cease or property is transferred or sold. We believe that we are currently in material compliance with applicable U.S. laws
and regulations.

From time to time we have received claims seeking environmental cleanup or similar costs with respect to properties that either the SGL Group
or others currently or previously owned or operated. We believe that the extent of contamination and our liability, if any, arising from such
claims will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

We have established and continue to establish accruals for environmental liabilities where it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated. We adjust accruals on a periodic basis as we make new remediation commitments or receive
information indicating that previous estimates should be changed. We believe that, taking into account our environmental accruals, our current
environmental liabilities will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Estimates of future costs of environmental protection are necessarily imprecise. Uncertainties affecting these estimates include the impact of
new laws and regulations, the availability and application of new and diverse technologies and the extent of insurance coverage. Subject to this
inherent imprecision, on the basis of our experience in managing environmental matters we believe that costs and capital expenditures related to
environmental protection over the next several years will not have a significant impact on our financial condition or results of operation.
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Organizational Structure

As a management holding company, SGL is legally separate from its various operating subsidiaries in the SGL Group. SGL s Board of

Management, however, provides overall strategic direction and monitors the operations of the Group. Individual members of the Board of

Management have a group coordination function for specific business units and functional as well as regional responsibilities. See Item 6,
Directors, Senior Management and Employees Directors and Senior Management Board of Management .

Our operational business is managed by Business Areas. At the beginning of 2002, we combined the former regional business units of Carbon
and Graphite and Specialties into global Business Areas to improve efficiency and respond to the increasing globalization of our key customers.

With this change and the divestiture of the surface protection business, all three of our Business Areas
SGL Technologies are organized on a global basis. Our organizational structure is thus identical with our segment reporting.

Our production sites and Group companies are managed by the relevant Business Area (or, in the case of multi-business area sites, by a

Carbon and Graphite, Specialties and

management committee). The boards of directors of individual Group companies have responsibility for those companies legal and financial

affairs. Centralized corporate functions support the SGL Board of Management and provide services to all businesses and to individual legal
entities within the Group. In 2005, we merged the previously decentralized research and development activities into the newly created central
function Technology & Innovation .

After years focusing on restructuring and refinancing as well as current global trends such as growing ecological challenges and accelerated

substitution of traditional materials by advanced materials and innovations, SGL changed its corporate brand with effect from February 1, 2007
to SGL Group The Carbon Company . In this context of realignment, SGL adjusted also its organizational structure into two business areas
Performance Products and Advanced Materials.

Principal Subsidiaries

The following table lists SGL Group s principal consolidated subsidiaries as at December 31, 2006 and its ownership interest in each:

Company Name

North America

SGL Carbon LLC

HITCO Carbon Composites, Inc
SGL Technic Inc.
M.G.P.LLC

SGL Carbon Technic LLC
SGL Canada Inc.

Europe

SGL Carbon GmbH

SGL Technologies GmbH
SGL Brakes GmbH

SGL Carbon Beteiligung GmbH *
SGL Carbon Technic SAS
SGL Carbon SpA

SGL Carbon Holdings S.L.
SGL Carbon S.A.

Gelter Ringsdorff S.A.
SGL Carbon GmbH & Co
SGL Carbon Polska S.A.
SGL Carbon SAS

SGL Technic Ltd.

SGL Carbon Ltd.

Location

Business Area

Ownership Interest%

Charlotte, NC, USA
Gardena, CA, USA
Valencia, CA, USA

Sinking Spring, PA, USA

Strongsville, OH, USA
Lachute, Canada

Meitingen, Germany
Meitingen, Germany
Meitingen, Germany
Wiesbaden, Germany
Grenoble, France
Milan, Italy

La Corufia, Spain

La Corufia, Spain
Madrid, Spain

Steeg, Austria
Ratibor, Poland
Chedde, France

Muir of Ord, Scotland
Alcester, UK

CG,S,SGL'T
SGLT
S,SGLT

S

S

CG

CG, S
SGLT
SGLT
Corporate
S

CG, S
Corporate
CG

S

CG

CG, S

SGLT

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

99.7
100.0

99.9

64.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
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Company Name Location Business Area Ownership Interest%
SGL Carbon Japan Ltd. Tokio, Japan S 100.0
SGL Carbon Far East Ltd. Shanghai , China S 100.0
SGL Carbon India, Pvt. Ltd. Pune, India S 100.0
SGL Carbon Karahm Ltd. Sangdaewon-Dong, South Korea S 50.9
SGL Carbon Graphite Technic Co. Ltd. Shanghai, China S 100.0
Ningbo SSG Co. Ltd. Ningbo, China SGLT 60.0

*  SGL Carbon Beteiligung GmbH and SGL CARBON Holdings S.L. are 100% direct or indirect subsidiaries of SGL Carbon AG that serve as holding
companies for various other holding companies and operating subsidiaries within the SGL Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

As of December 31, 2006, we operated 38 main manufacturing facilities worldwide, all of which are located in Europe, North America and Asia.
Effective January 2005, we sold the surface protection and plastic application business with manufacturing facilities in Germany, United States,
China, France and Italy. We also have other properties, including office buildings, research laboratories and warehouses, primarily in United
States, Germany, Poland, France, Italy and Austria. The size of land we own is approximately 1,913 thousand square meter in the United States
(473 acres), 804 thousand square meters (199 acres) in Germany, 727 thousand square meters (180 acres) in Poland, 619 thousand square meters
(153 acres) in Italy, 341 thousand square meters (84 acres) in Canada, 174 thousand square meters (43 acres) in France, 168 thousand square
meters (42 acres) in Austria and 114 thousand square meters (28 acres) in Spain. We own most of our manufacturing facilities and other
properties.

We are harmonizing our manufacturing processes throughout the Group to permit global sourcing from all locations with consistent and
interchangeable quality levels. We produce graphite electrodes in the United States, Canada, Germany, Italy, Spain, Austria and Poland. Carbon
electrode production is concentrated in Poland and cathodes and furnace linings are manufactured in Germany and Poland. Our feeder stock for
specialty graphite products is manufactured in Germany, France and the United States. In Europe, we have further optimized production by
concentrating extruded, molded and isostatic pressed graphite product grades in the facilities best suited for this work. We have taken similar
restructuring measures in North America, discontinuing manufacture of molded and isostatic products in the United States. We produce our
process technology products in Germany, with additional production facilities in France and the United States. Approximately 70% of our
carbon fibers and composites are manufactured outside of Germany, primarily in the United States and the United Kingdom.

We currently have capacity to manufacture approximately 280,000 metric tons of heavy bulk carbon and graphite products annually (excluding
Specialties). This capacity includes approximately 220,000 metric tons of graphite electrodes. In 2006, we sold approximately 209,000 metric
tons of graphite electrodes compared with 222,000 metric tons in 2005.
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As of March 31, 2007 we operated the following main facilities

Location

Europe
Wiesbaden, Germany"

Meitingen, Germany
Griesheim, Germany?
Bonn, Germany

Steeg, Austria

Milan, Italy

Verdello, Italy

Narni, Italy

Ascoli Piceno, Italy
Chedde, France

Grenoble, France

La Coruna, Spain

Madrid, Spain

Ratibor, Poland

Nowy Sacz, Poland
Inverness, Scotland
Halifax, England

Alcester, England
Novotscherkassk, Russia
North America

Charlotte, North Carolina®
Morganton, North Carolina
Hickman, Kentucky
Ozark, Arkansas

Valencia, California
Lachute, Quebec, Canada
Kitchener, Ontario, Canada
St. Marys, Pennsylvania
Strongsville, Ohio
Arkadelphia, Arkansas
Sinking Spring, Pennsylvania
Gardena, California
Cheshire, Connecticut
Evanston, Wyoming

Asia

Tokio, Japan

Ningbo, China

Shanghai, China

Daegu (Kyung Ki-Do), South Korea

Primary Use

Business
Manufacturing Sales Administration Area Owned/Leased
X Corporate Leased

PP, GMS,
X X X CFC Owned
X PP Owned
X X X GMS Owned
X X PP Owned
X PP, GMS Leased
X X X GMS Leased
X PP Owned
X PP Owned
X X X GMS Owned
X X X GMS Owned
X X X PP Owned
X X X GMS Owned
X X PP Owned
X X X PP, GMS Owned
X X CFC Owned
X CFC Leased
GMS Leased
X X X GMS Leased
X X Corporate Owned
X GMS Owned
X PP Owned
X PP Owned
X X X GMS Owned
X X X PP Owned
X X X GMS Leased
X X X GMS Owned
X X X GMS Owned
X GMS Leased
X X GMS Leased
X X CFC Owned
X GMS Leased
X CFC Leased

PP, GMS,
X X CFC Leased
X X GMS Leased
X X X PP, GMS Leased
X X GMS Owned
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Pune, India X X X GMS Owned

Banting, Malaysia X X X PP Owned
PP, GMS,

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia X X X CEC Leased

D Corporate Headquarters

2 Right to construct buildings on land owned by a third party in Germany (Erbbaurecht) under German law, comparable to a long-term ground lease

3 Head Office, North America

As of December 31, 2006 we had material pledges on our property under the syndicated loans. These agreements entailed the pledging of equity
interests of most Group companies. The rights of use of intangible assets have been assigned for all German members of the Group, for two U.S.
subsidiaries, and for SGL CARBON SpA in Italy. For more details on the pledges properties; see Item 10, Additional Information Material
Contracts . We believe that our facilities, which are of varying ages and types of construction, are in good condition, are suitable for our
operations and generally provide sufficient capacity to meet our requirements for the foreseeable future.
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In our Performance Products business area we strengthened our core graphite electrodes business by constructing a new graphite electrodes
production hub in Banting, Malaysia which we expect to begin production (machining and graphitization) in 2008. Its initial annual production
capacity of approximately 30,000 metric tons can be expanded to up to approximately 60,000 metric tons. In our Graphite Materials & Systems
business unit, we intend to increase our capacity for the production of extruded and isostatically molded graphite and optimize our production
infrastructure for expanded graphite products in the EU, North America and Asia. In order to increase our capacity for the production of directly
processable carbon fiber based prepregs, we commissioned a state of the art production site in Meitingen, Germany in December 2006. The new
production facility allows us to expand the range of prepregs to larger applications and from niches into already established and growing
markets. In addition, we have secured the long-term supply of raw materials for the production of carbon fibers through our joint venture with
Lenzing AG, Austria. Furthermore, we plan to start operation of a new carbon fiber production line in August 2007 and two additional lines by
2008. We believe that these measures will increase our carbon fiber production capacity from 2,400 tons at present to 6,600 tons by the end of
2010. Capacity utilization levels remain high at all of our plants.

Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

You should read this operating and financial review together with the description of our business, the general information about SGL Group
and the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this annual report. We prepared our consolidated
financial information in accordance with IFRS or, where indicated, in accordance with U.S. GAAP. IFRS differs in certain significant respects
from U.S. GAAP. See U.S. GAAP reconciliation and  Significant differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP as well as notes 35 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this annual report. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by our forward looking
statements. See Forward-looking statements and Risk Factors.

Overview

The SGL Group is one of the world s leading carbon companies. We provide our customers with a global distribution network that is supported
by more than 38 production locations in the European Union, Russia North America and Asia. Our key to success is a comprehensive portfolio
of materials and the relevant technologies. As a result our product solutions are applied in a wide range of industries with a focus on steel,
aluminum, chemical, automotive, energy and aerospace. Our customers are located in industrialized countries throughout the world. In 2006, we
sold products in more than 80 countries, with sales outside Germany accounting for approximately 85% of our sales revenue.

Until December 31, 2004, 18 subsidiaries and two joint ventures were excluded from consolidation and accounted for at cost, since these were
deemed to be not material as whole. In the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2005, these subsidiaries have been included in
consolidation and the joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity method. In this context, the opening balances of assets, liabilities
and equity as of January 1, 2004, as well as the Consolidated Balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 and the Consolidated Income Statement
and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, have been restated retrospectively.

IFRS 2 Share-based payment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005. The IFRS is to be applied retrospectively on
all share-based payments granted since November 7, 2002, that still existed when the standard became effective and requires comparable
information to be restated. This also includes a restatement to the opening balances of the retained earnings in the earliest period presented.

The revised IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements defines a presentation of current and non-current assets and liabilities as separate groups
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The standard must be used for reporting periods of a fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2005 or later. The
company s Consolidated Balance Sheet was structured accordingly and the previous years figures were adjusted. In prior years, we presented
costs related to antitrust proceedings and restructuring expenses separately in our Consolidated Income Statements. Beginning with the year
ended December 31, 2005, we have stopped reporting these items separately and the prior years statements have been adjusted to reflect his
change.

Business Realignment

We realigned our business areas with effect from February 1, 2007 creating a new structure consisting of two business areas Performance

Products and Advanced Materials encompassing three business units: Performance Products, = Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers
& Composites. Performance Products corresponds to the former Carbon and Graphite business area and contains the new business unit

Performance Products. Advanced Materials comprises the former Specialties and SGL Technologies business areas which have been re-grouped

into the two remaining business units, Graphite Materials & Systems and Carbon Fibers & Composites. Graphite Materials & Systems

comprises the activities of the former Specialties business area as well as the expanded natural graphite business line which was previously part

of the former SGL Technologies business area, while Carbon Fibers & Composites encompasses the carbon fiber and composites activities of

the former SGL Technologies business area.
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Since the beginning of 2005, we managed our operations in three business areas that reflect the products that we produce and market Carbon
and Graphite, Specialties, and SGL Technologies. Prior to 2005, we operated a fourth business area, Corrosion Protection. We discontinued the
Corrosion Protection business area in January 2005 due to the sale of our Surface Protection and Plastic Process Technologies businesses, which
represented more than 70% of the sales of this business area. The remaining process technology business was reclassified from Corrosion
Protection to Specialties. The segment reporting for all previous years has been adjusted to reflect this reorganization. The divested surface
protection business is shown separately as a discontinued operation for the years discussed in this report. All other descriptions and discussions
refer to the continuing operations.

SGL Excellence

Our SGL Excellence program focuses on creating customer value and enhancing our competitiveness. We have based our SGL Excellence
program on a philosophy which focuses on a culture of continuous improvement. In connection with the SGL Excellence program, we generated
significant cost savings based on continuing cost reduction projects and restructuring programs. As part of these restructuring programs, we
significantly reduced our total number of employees. Total cost savings attributable to these and other initiatives amounted to approximately 26
million, approximately 21 million, and approximately 36 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We are targeting further cost reductions
in the future. Our planned measures include:

further optimizing our production system, including moving our operations to lower-cost facilities;
continuous improvements in raw materials and energy utilization; and

outsourcing and/or streamlining non-core functions.

The SGL Excellence program has provided sustainable cost reductions, having contributed total annual cost reductions across all functions since
its launch. Our ability to achieve cost savings will depend on a number of factors. These factors include our ability to accurately estimate the
magnitude of costs incurred in connection with the implementation of our cost-reduction measures and our ability to achieve targeted operating
efficiencies with a leaner production base.

Currency exchange exposure

We generate revenue primarily in U.S. dollars and in euro. The remainder of our revenue is denominated principally in other European
currencies (primarily British Pounds and Polish Zloty). Purchases of our principal raw material, petroleum coke, are denominated in U.S.
dollars. Other principal production costs, such as labor and energy, are denominated in the currency of the country in which the relevant
production facilities are located. We currently operate our primary manufacturing facilities in Europe and North America.

Fluctuations in currency rates, especially between the U.S. dollar and the euro, can influence our operating and financial results. After the value
of the U.S. dollar declined relative to the euro during 2004, reaching a low-point at the end of 2004, the U.S. dollar strengthened against the euro
in 2005, weakened again in 2006. Currency fluctuations have several effects on our results, some of which may offset others. A weak dollar
tends to have a negative effect on revenue and results. See Item 3 Risk Factors  Risks relating to our business We are exposed to currency
exchange rate risks and interest rate risks. In addition, we have major assets, debts and other liabilities in the United States or denominated in
U.S. dollars. Fluctuations in the euro-U.S. dollar exchange rate can cause currency translation effects in our consolidated balance sheet. A
continued increase in the value of the euro relative to the U.S. dollar reduces our dollar denominated liabilities and it also reduces the
contribution of our U.S. businesses to our consolidated results of operations. A stronger dollar will tend to increase, and a weaker dollar to
decrease, our non-current and current assets as well as equity and liabilities. In the 2004 fiscal year, the translation effect of all exchange rate
fluctuations increased our equity by 2.3 million, which was due to the fact that the weakening of the U.S. dollar was offset by the strengthening
of other currencies (mainly the Polish zloty). In 2005, our equity increased by 20.5 million mainly due to the stronger U.S. dollar. In the 2006
fiscal year, our equity decreased
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by 15.3 million mainly due to the weaker U.S. dollar. The ultimate impact of currency exchange rate fluctuations on our net income will depend
on the circumstances at any given time.

Fluctuations over the course of the year

Our sales revenue for a number of our products, in particular graphite electrodes, fluctuates from quarter to quarter due to such factors as
customer inventory levels, scheduled customer plant shutdowns, changes in customer production schedules in response to seasonal changes in
energy costs, weather conditions, and strikes and work stoppages. In addition, customers may change their order patterns in response to price
changes. During the period prior to the effective date of a price increase, customers tend to buy additional quantities of graphite electrodes at the
then lower price, which adds to our sales revenue during that period. During the period following a price increase, customers tend to use those
additional quantities before placing further orders, which reduces our sales revenue during that period. Similarly, customers tend to use up their
inventories and delay purchases when they expect price reductions. Sales from project related businesses, such as for process technology and
furnace linings, are normally lowest in the first quarter and highest in the fourth quarter.

Sales revenue

We generate revenue primarily through the manufacture and sale of carbon and graphite products to customers from several industries, including
steelmaking, aluminum production, chemicals, mechanical and systems engineering, automotive, energy and aerospace. Our revenue from
trading and other sources is not significant.

Our consolidated sales revenue reflects net sales, that is, sales revenue after elimination of intersegment sales. The following table shows the
sales revenue of the SGL Group and its year-on-year change on a consolidated basis as well as by business area/unit and geographical region for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. After the divesture of the Surface Protection and Plastic Process Technologies businesses in
beginning of 2005 we reclassified the remaining Process Technology business into the Specialties business area and no longer present a
Corrosion Protection business area. All prior periods have been adjusted accordingly.

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
( in (% ( in (% ( in
millions) change) millions) change) millions)
SGL Group consolidated total 1,190.8 114 1,068.8 13.2 944.0
By business area:

Carbon & Graphite 716.1 11.2 643.7 14.4 562.5

Specialties * 301.1 14.3 263.4 6.9 246.3

SGL Technologies 171.3 7.7 159.0 19.1 133.5

Other 2.3 (14.8) 2.7 58.8 1.7
By geographical region:

Germany 179.9 26.1 142.7 1.9 140.0

Rest of Europe 403.6 6.1 380.4 18.8 320.2

North America 293.8 3.5 283.8 13.5 250.0

Rest of World 313.5 19.7 261.9 12.0 233.8

*  After the sale of the surface protection business, we reclassified the Process Technology business from Corrosion Protection to Specialties and no longer
present the Corrosion Protection business area. All sales revenue numbers for the years presented have been adjusted to reflect this reclassification.

Sales revenue is recognized at the time of transfer of risk, following delivery of a product or rendering of the services, net of any discounts and

rebates granted. We grant discounts to our customers for early payment of amounts outstanding. We also provide volume discounts to our

customers based on their total purchases during a specified term. Such discounts are recorded as a reduction of revenue based on our estimate of

the number of customers that will ultimately earn these discounts. We record most of our revenue under purchase contracts with major industrial

38

45



Edgar Filing: SGL CARBON AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F/A

46



Edgar Filing: SGL CARBON AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F/A

Back to Contents

customers, with the timing of revenue recognition dependant on the specific terms of these contracts. If product sales are subject to customer
acceptance, we do not recognize revenue until the customer accepts the product.

Over the last decade, we have significantly broadened the geographical range of our sales in North America and Europe. Since 2001 we have
also been increasing our revenues generated in Asia, a trend that we expect to continue in the coming years with the ongoing industrialization of
eastern and southeastern Asia. We believe that our broad base, having a product portfolio that serves many industries, and the global distribution
of our business reduces our exposure to economic cyclicality in any single region or customer industry. In particular, the target industries of the
former Specialties business area are more strongly diversified, thereby reducing to some degree that business area s exposure to economic
slow-down in any one key industry.

Cost of sales

Major components of cost of sales include the cost of raw materials, personnel expenses and energy. Raw material costs in the former Carbon
and Graphite business area consist primarily of purchases of petroleum-based needle coke and coal tar binder and impregnation pitch. Specialties
production uses similar raw materials as well as additional forming techniques, treatments and combinations of other raw materials. Historically,
we have not had difficulty obtaining these raw materials. Procurement agreements with key suppliers, especially of needle coke, are used to
secure the necessary supplies of raw materials. Some of these agreements are long-term (i.e. three years or above), but most are on an annual
basis and have been regularly renewed in recent years. Our procurement agreements generally provide for fixed or minimum purchase

quantities, which provide us with stable volumes of supply. Prices in annual agreements are usually fixed and renegotiated on renewal, while in
the case of agreements with a term of more than one year prices are calculated according to specified formulas based on defined parameters such
as the suppliers raw material prices, particularly crude oil prices, and SGL s average sales prices. The market for high quality graphite electrodes
continues to be under strain due to the shortage of the most important raw material high quality needle coke. However, in view of our long-term
supplier relationships, we do not anticipate procurement bottlenecks in 2007 or 2008.

Personnel expenses, including wages, salaries, social security and pension expenses, represent the second most significant item in our cost of
sales. We incur substantial energy costs, primarily for electricity, in connection with the production of our graphite electrode and other graphite
and carbon products. Energy costs over the last several years have been highly volatile and trending upwards. Our cost of sales includes
straight-line depreciation of property, plant and equipment having estimated useful lives ranging from three to 41 years. In the periods discussed
below, raw material and energy prices have generally increased, reducing gross profit margin (calculated as sales revenue less cost of sales,
divided by sales revenue).

Selling expenses

Selling expenses consist primarily of the expenses of our sales organization as well as distribution expenses, such as packaging materials, freight
charges and sales commission expenses. We include in sales organization expenses wages and salaries, social security, pension expense, office
space and expenses, in each case related to our sales force.

Research costs

We incur research costs in connection with the development of new materials and compounds for high technology applications, particularly for

development of products in the SGL Technologies business area, such as carbon ceramics for the automotive industry and components for fuel

cells. In 2005, we began merging the previously decentralized research and development activities into the newly created central function
Technology and Innovation ( T&I ). This centralization process was largely completed in the 2006 fiscal year. This results in optimization of the

information flow, shorter and more transparent decision-making processes and more cost-effective use of the infrastructure. All this directly

increases the efficiency of our research and development activities. It is not, however, directly targeted at reducing costs. In 2006, we succeeded

in making our research and development services much more effective by coordinating our innovation strategy directly with the strategies
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adopted by the SGL Group operating units, selecting and conducting projects in a disciplined manner and clearly focusing on commercial
applicability. For more information on our research and development activities and the advantages of our new T&lI research organization, see
Research and Development, Patents and Licenses, etc. below.

General and administrative expenses

Our general and administrative expenses comprise personnel and non-personnel costs attributable to the SGL Group s parent holding company
and other administrative centers. These costs include accounting, treasury, senior human resources management and legal expenses, the cost of
professional advisors and pension expense related to personnel in general administration. We also incurred general and administrative expenses
in connection with the development of a common management information system and external advisory expenses related to acquisitions,
divestments and other corporate projects. Since the beginning of 2005, general and administrative expenses include expenses related to the
implementation of certain procedures required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and, starting in 2006, to the audit required thereunder.

Other operating income / expense (net)

The major components of other operating income (expense) include costs relating to antitrust proceedings, restructuring expenses, insurance
payments received, exchange gains and losses from operating activities, gains and losses from sales of property, plant and equipment, bank
charges and income and/or loss from additions to and releases of provisions.

Restructuring expenses are included in other operating expenses. Expenses in connection with EU antitrust proceedings are shown separately to
increase transparency for any year-on-year comparison. Expenses related to the continuing restructuring programs (initiated in prior years) and
other measures to improve efficiency and further reduce costs resulted in a total expense of 4.2 million in 2006 ( 20.8 million in 2005 and 19.7
million in 2004). Expenses recorded in connection with EU antitrust proceedings resulted in a charge of 32.1 million in 2006 ( 0.0 million in
2005 and 0.0 million in 2004). We paid to the European Commission in 2006 the final fine for graphite electrodes imposed on us by it on July
18, 2001 and finally assessed by the European Court of Justice (the ECJ )at 75.7 million, excluding interest. The maximum amounts of the EU
fine finally assessed by the ECJ at 18.5 million plus accrued interest on May 10, 2007, and the EU fine still being appealed were fully provided
for on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at the end of 2006. We have cash deposited 23.6 million covering the fine that had been imposed by the
European Commission in connection with mechanical and electrical contacts at the end of 2003. The graphite specialties fine of 22.3 million
including accrued interest was previously secured by bank guarantees and on February 8, 2007, cash deposited to the European Commission
without legal recognition of the 2005 European Court of First Instance (the CFI ) judgment. For more information on the European antitrust
proceedings, see Item 8, Financial Information Legal Proceedings Antitrust court proceedings (Europe/South Korea) below.

Net financing costs

Our financial result comprises interest expense and interest income as well as other financing costs. Interest expense includes, among other
things, interest expense on loans, the interest component of appropriations to pension provisions and accrued or paid interest on liabilities from
antitrust proceedings. When the United Stated Department of Justice (the DOJ ) imposed a fine on SGL in connection with an antitrust
investigation in 1999, we discounted the resulting antitrust fine to its present value and recorded this amount as a liability on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet using an interest rate of 4%. In each succeeding reporting period, we have recalculated the present value of this liability, which
has resulted in a regular interest expense from the discounting of the liability. In the first half of 2002, we agreed to an amended fine payment
schedule with the DOJ. This amended payment schedule resulted in a one-time reduction in our net financing costs due to a reduction in the
present value of the outstanding antitrust liability, which was paid in full in 2005.

Because the DOJ antitrust liability was denominated in U.S. dollars, changes in the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate from period to period may
give rise to translation effects on our Consoildated Balance Sheet. To reduce the resulting exposure to currency exchange rates, we hedged the
antitrust
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liability. However, we retained exposure to non-cash adjustments in the amount of the remaining antitrust liability. We recorded these non-cash
adjustments under other financial results at the end of each reporting period. As of December 31, 2005, the DOJ antitrust liability was paid in
full.

We also included an accrued interest portion for the EU fines starting in 2003. This is reflected in a separate line within the net interest result.
Until end of 2005 we accrued amounts based on an estimated interest rate. Background for such treatment was our appeal on interest charges
raised by the EU commission in the three fines. This appeal was finally rejected by the ECJ in connection with the final decisions of the fine for
graphite electrodes on June 29, 2006. As a consequence we fully provisioned or partly paid in case of the graphite electrode case outstanding
interest on the level of the originally imposed interest rate by the EU-Commission. Based on the decision from June 29, 2006 we had to expense
an additional interest portion of 12.8 million in 2006 besides the normal expenses amounting to 1.3 million in 2006.

As a result of the financing of payments related to antitrust proceedings since 1998, the funding of development and start-up expenses of our

brake disc businesses since 1999, the acquisition of the KCH group (a major part of the former SGL Acotec Group) in 1999 and ZEW (now SGL
CARBON Polska S.A.) in 2000 net interest expense increased. Our net interest expense peaked in 2005 due to the financing completed in

February 2004 mainly impacted by the 8.5% coupon on the 270.0 million Old Senior Notes issued by SGL CARBON Luxembourg S.A (see

item 10, Additional Information Material Contracts The Old Senior Notes ). We successfully managed to reduce our net financial debt during
the past two years from 321.6 million at the end of 2004 to 229.1 million at the end of 2006.

Income tax benefit (expense)

Tax expenses include current and deferred income tax expenses. Our income tax expense reflects income tax liabilities in respect of pre-tax
earnings from our consolidated group companies, which cannot offset these earnings against existing tax loss carry-forwards or other tax credits
in other consolidated group companies. Deferred tax benefits and expense result from the capitalization of deferred taxes or the revaluation of
capitalized deferred tax assets that arose from tax loss carry-forwards as well as from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in financial statements prepared under IFRS as compared to the amounts prepared under local tax accounting rules
(calculated by the balance sheet liability method). In 2006, 2005 and 2004 deferred tax assets from tax loss carry-forwards were uniformly
recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements on the basis of a rolling projection of the estimated earnings to be taxed at the level of
individual subsidiaries or on the level of tax groups. Uncertainties about certain planning assumptions and other underlying conditions are taken
into account. Based on the restructuring measures taken, the disposal of the loss generating Surface Protection business, the significant reduction
of the net financial debt and the improved economic market environment for our business segments, we assume that the capitalized deferred tax
assets on loss carry-forwards can be utilized in the future.

German corporations are subject to a uniform 25% corporate income tax on both distributed and retained earnings. Furthermore, a solidarity
surcharge of 5.5% is added to the corporation tax rate, resulting in an overall corporation income tax rate of 26.4% for 2006, 2005 and 2004.
German corporations are also subject to a trade tax. The amount of the trade tax depends on the municipality in which a company maintains its
operations. The trade tax generally amounts to between approximately 15% and 20% of taxable earnings, depending on the municipality s tax
assessment rate. Trade tax is deductible as an operating expense in the calculation of a company s income that is subject to corporation tax. The
overall German income tax rate thus amounts to 38.4%. Due to changes in German legislation, generally only 60% of tax loss carry-forwards
may be offset from current annual income. Losses up to an amount of 1 million can be completely deducted from corporation income tax as well
as from trade tax.

The income tax rate for our American companies is currently 39% (2005: 39%). Some of the income tax rates for other foreign group companies
were significantly lower. In 2006 and 2005, these were 35% in Spain, 34% in France, 33% in Canada, 30% in the UK, 25% in Austria and 19%
in Poland.
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Operating Results

The following table shows our Consolidated Income Statements for the 2006, 2005 and 2004 fiscal years.

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
( in ( in ( in

millions) % change millions) % change millions)

Sales revenue 1,190.8 11.4 1,068.8 13.2 944.0
Cost of sales (806.8) 8.0 (746.7) 9.6 (681.3)

Gross profit 384.0 19.2 322.1 22.6 262.7
Selling expenses (132.3) 4.3 (126.8) 6.5 (119.1)
Research costs (25.5) 41.7 (18.0) (6.3) (19.2)
General and administrative expenses (51.4) 6.9 (48.1) 10.3 (43.6)
Other operating income and (expenses), net (36.9) 125.0 (16.4) (24.8) (21.8)

Profit from operations 137.9 22.3 112.8 91.2 59.0
Net financing costs (61.5) (6.3) (65.6) 6.0 (61.9)
Profit (loss) before tax 76.4 61.9 47.2 2.9)
Income tax expense (35.5) 85.9 (19.1) (1.6)
Net profit (loss) for the period from continuing operations 40.9 45.6 28.1 4.5)
Discontinued operations 0.0 0.0 (81.8)
Minority interests 0.2) 0.1 0.1)
Net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders 40.7 44.3 28.2 (86.4)

The following table shows selected Consolidated Income Statement data expressed as a percentage of total sales revenue for the years 2006,
2005 and 2004:

Year ended December 31,

2006 (%) 2005 (%) 2004 (%)

Sales revenue 100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales (67.8) (69.9) (72.2)
Gross profit 322 30.1 27.8
Selling, research, general and administrative and other operating income and expenses, net *) (20.6) (19.5) (21.5)
Profit from operations 11.6 10.6 6.3
Net financing costs 5.2) (6.2) (6.6)
Income tax expense 3.0) (1.8) 0.2)
Net Profit (loss) (includes minority interests) 34 2.6 (0.5)
Discontinued operations 0.0 0.0 (8.7)

Net Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders 34 2.6 9.2)
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2006 Compared to 2005
Overview

Increase in sales revenue of 11.4% to  1,190.8 million and improvement of profit from operationsby 22.3% to  137.9 million, with an
increase in sales revenues in all business areas.

Return on sales ( ROS ihcreased from 10.6% to 11.6% (due to ongoing site optimization) and return on capital employed ( ROCE )
increased from 13.8% to 16.0%.

Capital expenditures of 65.2 million, an increase of 20.5 million from 2005, creating a strong foundation for sustainable growth.
Announcement of our strategic investment in Malaysia.
Further consistent reduction of net financial debt* from 264.7 million to 229.1 million.

Cash provided by operating activities decreased by 31.4% to 12.0 million due to increased payments for antitrust proceedings.

Payment of antitrust fines of 99.7 million in 2006 (2005: payments of outstanding fines of 70.2 million). All pending proceedings have
been completely provided for and funded with additional provisions of 8.6 million. All current proceedings are fully funded as the last
outstanding fine was funded on February 8, 2007.

Successfully placed capital increase with a net cash inflow of 82.1 million.
Further improvement in the equity ratio’® from 27.1% to 35.3%, and in gearing® from 0.8 to 0.5.

Established the goal of becoming the leading carbon company, reflected in our new name, SGL Group The Carbon Company,
capturing our continuing focus on customer benefit with the Group s claim of Broad Base. Best Solutions.

Sales revenue

Consolidated sales revenue increased by 11.4% from 1,068.8 million in 2005 to  1,190.8 million in 2006. This was primarily due to the sustained
trend of strong demand in our main customer industries driven by good overall economic development, leading to carbon and graphite volume
growth and price increases.

Based on the positive development in all three business areas, the portion of the Group s sales revenues accounted for by each business area

remained largely unchanged with Carbon and Graphite generating 60.1%, Specialties generating 25.3% and SGL Technologies generating

14.4% of the Group s sales revenue in 2006. The sales revenue of Carbon and Graphite totaled 716.1 million in 2006, increasing by 11.2% from
643.7 million in 2005. Specialties increased its sales revenue from 263.4 million in 2005 to 301.1 million in 2006, an increase of 14.3%. SGL

Technologies generated an increase in sales of 7.7% from 159.0 million in 2005 to  171.3 million in 2006.

Sales revenue by region during fiscal year 2006 also remained largely unchanged from 2005: Germany 15.1%, other European countries 33.9%,
North America 24.7%, rest of the world 26.3%.

Our sales revenue developed in the individual business areas as follows:

Carbon and Graphite: Prior to 2006, the Carbon and Graphite business area benefited from the ongoing positive development of the steel
business. In 2006, there was also positive momentum due to

1 Profit from operations is a not a uniformaly or legally U.S. GAAP financial measure. For reconciliation of profit from operations to net income please see
Item 3, Key Information  Selected Financial Data.

2 Return on sales ( ROS ) is a not a uniformaly or legally U.S. GAAP financial measure. It is the ratio of gross profit to sales revenue.

3 Return on capital employed ( ROCE ) is a not a uniformaly or legally U.S. GAAP financial measure. It is the ratio of profit from operations divided by the
amount of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventories and trade receivables less trade payables at the end of the year.
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Net financial debt is a not a uniformaly or legally U.S. GAAP financial measure. It is defined as financial liabilities plus accrued refinancing costs less cash
and cash equivalents.

Equity ratio is not a uniformaly or legally U.S. GAAP financial measure. It is defined as ratio of shareholders equity to total assets.

Gearing is not a uniformaly or legally U.S. GAAP financial measure. It is defined as net financial debt divided by shareholders equity.
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the upturn in demand in the aluminium and silicon industries. Carbon and Graphite sales increased by 11.2% in 2006 (after adjusting for foreign
currency changes: 11.8%) to  716.1 million (2005: 643.7 million). Volume and price effects impacted the reported sales by a decrease of 1.7%
and an increase of 13.5% respectively, in comparison to the previous year. After a record year in 2005 (222,000 tons), shipments of the core
product graphite electrodes reached 209,000 tons. The increase in shipments in 2005 was mainly due to increased demand from certain
customers. Despite reduced shipments in 2006 compared to 2005, we were able to increase sales revenues in all regions in 2006. In 2006,
significant price increases were achieved in both the euro- and the U.S. dollar-zones. On a local currency basis, average prices for the core
product graphite electrodes increased by approximately 22% in the U.S. dollar-zone and by approximately 10% in the euro-zone compared to the
previous year. The continued strong steel cycle and the stable trend for 2007 had a positive effect on our graphite electrode order backlog at the
end of 2006.

The global demand and market development for carbon electrodes has been stable. The market for carbon electrodes is highly competitive due to
excess capacities of suppliers and strong cost competition from low-wage countries. However, as a result of some competitors leaving this
market, as well as our focus on the optimization of the cost structure of carbon electrodes, we were able impove our results. A significant
upward trend was evident in the aluminum industry in 2006. Sales for cathodes were up significantly on the previous year as a result of a higher
level of shipments. In addition, a further shift in demand to high quality graphitized cathodes was recorded. The furnace lining business was sold
out again due to ongoing strong demand in the primary steel industry. All capacities in the Carbon and Graphite business area were utilized at a
very high level in 2006.

Specialties: Sales in the Specialties business area increased by 14.3% (after adjusting for foreign currency changes: 15.4%) from 263.4 million
in the previous year to 301.1 million in 2006. Approximately one third of Specialties sales in 2006 was attributable to products introduced over
the last four years. As a result of higher demand from all the customer industries, sales increases were achieved in all Specialties businesses. The
strong increase in demand for our products from the solar, LED and semiconductor industries, as well as the composite materials for industrial
applications strongly supported the sales growth in graphite specialties. The process technology business line achieved an increase in sales
compared to the previous year due to expanding Asian presence and rising chemical industry demand. The ROS in the Specialties business area
increased from 7.5% in 2005 to 10.6% in 2006.

SGL Technologies: In 2006 the SGL Technologies business area generated a sales increase of approximately 7.7% in the fiscal year (after
adjusting for foreign currency changes: 7.7%) from 159.0 million in the previous year to 171.3 million in 2006. This growth was achieved
mainly with carbon fibers and carbon-ceramic brake discs for high-quality automobiles. One of the most important factors for the rapid growth
of the carbon fiber area is the high demand for larger rotor blades for wind turbines. In addition, we had increased demand for the carbon fibers
we produce that are used in the thermal plastic industry for the manufacture of casing for notebooks, mobile phones and other electronic devices.

Cost of sales and gross profit

Consolidated cost of sales increased by 8.0% from 746.7 million in 2005 to  806.8 million in 2006. Compared to the consolidated sales revenue
growth of 11.4%, the increase in cost of sales was limited despite higher raw material and energy prices in 2006 mainly as a result of the

ongoing successful cost reduction initiatives within our SGL Excellence program. Raw material and energy prices increased on average by
approximately 15% during 2006 over the average prices in 2005. Nevertheless we were able to increase the efficiency of loading of our
capacities resulting in corresponding savings in raw material usage per finished ton of material. We were similarly able to optimize our
consumption of energy, both electricity and gas, throughout our manufacturing processes. Personnel expenses increased only slightly
year-on-year.

Gross profit increased by  61.9 million or 19.2% from 322.1 million in 2005 to  384.0 million in 2006. Gross return on sales revenue, representing
gross profit as a percentage of sales revenue, increased from 30.1% to 32.2%. Contributing substantially to this were the favorable price
developments in almost all businesses. We continued to offset significant increases in energy
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(electricity and gas) and raw material prices by continuing our cost reduction programs as well as through price increases.
Selling expenses, research costs, general and administrative expenses, other operating expense (net)

Selling expenses increased to  132.3 million in 2006 compared to 126.8 million in the previous year, an increase of 5.5 million that was mainly
caused by the increase in sales volumes. The ratio of selling expenses including freight costs in relation to sales was reduced from 11.9% in 2005
to 11.1% in 2006.

Research costs increased in line with our innovation strategy to  25.5 million in 2006 (which represented 2.1% of sales revenues) from 18.0
million in the previous year reflecting increased activity both in the further technological development of the existing product portfolio, as well
as opening new potential markets and technologies. Part of the development costs were capitalized in 2006 in accordance with IAS 38. Due to
the early product life-cycle of our SGL Technologies business lines, a significant component of the costs related to our research and
development activities are also included into the current operating costs of the SGL Technologies business area.

General and administrative expenses of 51.4 million were incurred in the fiscal year 2006, compared to 48.1 million in the previous year, an
increase of 3.3 million. The main causes of this increase were the greater expense for the valuation of our stock option and value enhancement
programs and the expenses in connection with the first-time review of the internal control system in the context of financial reporting. The ratio
of general administrative expenses in relation to sales was reduced from 4.5% to 4.3%. In this context, it should be noted that the expenses for
implementation and audit of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act totaled over 3 million in 2006.

Other operating expenses (net) decreased from 16.4 million in 2005 to 4.8 million in 2006 primarily due to significant reduction in restructuring
expenses, an improved result from operating currency gains and losses and incoming payments from the settlement of insurance claims. Other
operating income totaled 15.2 million (2005: 15.8 million) and consisted mainly of income from insurance compensation of 3.6 million (2005:

0.1 million), non recurring income from the release of provisions of 2.4 million (2005: 1.7 million), income from the disposal of non-current
assets totaling 1.6 million (2005: 10.0 million), and non recurring income from changes in bad debt allowances totaling 1.4 million (2005: 1.3
million). Other operating expenses totaled 20.0 million (2005: 32.2 million) and consisted mainly of restructuring expenses of 4.2 million (2005:

20.8 million), currency losses of 4.1 million (2005: 2.0 million), additions to provisions amounting to 1.4 million (2005: 2.9 million), and losses
from the disposal of non-current assets of 1.2 million (2005: 0.3 million). Measures related to the continuing restructuring programs (initiated in
prior years) and other measures to improve efficiency and optimize costs resulted in a total expense of 4.2 million during 2006. Included in this
amount was the gradual relocation of our carbon electrode production from Italy to Poland, which contained the write-down of the residual book
values of 2.5 million. An additional focus of these measures during 2006 was the conclusion of further partial retirement agreements and direct
leave payments in Germany. Restructuring expenses in 2005 amounted to  20.8 million, consisting mainly of personnel measures and the
write-down of residual book values in Italy.

Profit (loss) from operations

Profit from operations increased by 22.3% to 137.9 million in comparison to 112.8 million in 2005. The SGL Group s return on sales increased
from 10.6% in 2005 to 11.6% in 2006. Some of this improvement was due to our SGL Excellence program and other ongoing programs, which
led to total cost savings of 26.0 million in all functional areas.

On June 29, 2006, the European Court of Justice (ECJ) announced its verdict of our appeal against the antitrust fine relating to graphite

electrodes imposed on us by the European Commission on July 18, 2001. As a result of this concluding verdict, profit from operations was
negatively impacted with a one-off charge of 23.5 million and net financing costs of 12.8 million in the 2006 reporting year. Following a careful
examination of the decisions made by the ECJ in 2006, we have increased our provisions for the pending special graphite and electrical and
mechanical contacts proceedings by 8.6 million. Following the North American antitrust proceedings which were completed in 2005, the
European proceedings are now also expensed to the maximum amount. For the last time, this results in one-off charges for antitrust proceedings

of 32.1 million on profit from
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operations. Therefore profit from operations amounts to  137.9 million in the reporting year (compared to 112.8 million in the previous year).

Carbon and Graphite: Profit from operations in the Carbon and Graphite business area improved by 40.5% from 121.6 million in 2005 to

170.8 million in 2006. The return on sales increased from 18.9% in 2005 to 23.9% in 2006. Major contributions to this positive development
were related to price increases as well as cost reductions resulting from our SGL Excellence efficiency enhancing programs. We began
relocating our carbon electrode production from Ascoli, Italy to Nowy Sacz, Poland in 2005, and continued this process during 2006. We expect
that it will be completed in the middle of 2007. Positive volume development in the cathode business to serve the aluminum industry contributed
significantly to the improved profit in 2006 over 2005. Furnace linings for blast furnaces were sold out again in 2006 and further increased their
profit contribution to the overall Carbon and Graphite business area results. Machining activities for furnace linings were transferred from
Meitingen, Germany to Raciborc, Poland during 2006 to further improve our cost position.

Specialties: In the Specialties business area the profit from operations increased by 61.1% from 19.8 million in 2005 to  31.9 million in 2006.
The return on sales increased from 7.5% in 2005 to 10.6% in 2006. All business lines contributed to this improved performance in 2006. In
addition to volume and price effects, site-specific product streamlining and the expansion of production in Poland contributed to the improved
margin. By increasing the expenses for capital expenditures in property, plant and equipment as well as for research and development, we are
well prepared to capture the significant opportunities in growing markets such as solar-energy, LED applications and lithium-ion batteries,
creating the foundation for an even more profitable growth in the Specialties business area.

The strategic orientation of the Specialties business area towards Asia was further developed during 2006. The construction of a processing
center in Shanghai, China was completed by the graphite specialties business line. Orders and capacity utilization are developing well. In order
to support the volume growth in the graphite specialties business line, we expanded the isostatic capacities for graphite blocks at the Bonn site.
In the area of extruded semi-finished products, we focused the plant in Morganton, United States on specialties. At our site in Meitingen,
Germany, we centralized the processing activities with regard to the PBMR business (Pebble Bed Modular Reactor; components for a new
generation nuclear reactor in South Africa). In this context, other processing activities were relocated from Meitingen to Nowy Sacz, Poland. In
the process technology business line, negotiations for a joint venture with Tokai Carbon were completed in 2006, in which the Chinese, Japanese
and South Korean process technology activities of both companies will be combined. In addition, we expanded and strengthened our position in
Asia in starting up our assembly and processing activities in Pune, India. Our first customer orders are already being produced in India.

SGL Technologies: Operations in the SGL Technologies business area were just short of breaking even in 2006. There was a loss from
operations of 0.2 million in 2005 compared to a loss from operations of 1.0 million in 2006. The reason for this is ongoing development and
further startup costs in connection with the brake disc business. Without taking into account the positive effect on earnings from the cash
contribution by Audi in 2005 in connection with the brake disc program discussed below, there was a year-on-year improvement of profit from
operations. This increase was primarily due to a sales increase particularly from carbon fibers and brake discs. We also implemented price
increases and further cost savings resulted from the SGL Excellence program. The profitability in the SGL Technologies business area is
affected by high development and start-up costs for new products and applications.

Corporate costs

In the reporting year, corporate costs increased by 2.9 million to 31.7 million (2005: 28.8 million). In addition to the management holding costs
and the assigned central service areas, the costs in connection with the audit requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which were applicable to

us as of 2006, are also reported centrally in this segment. For this purpose, the internal control system in financial reporting has been uniformly
aligned with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act across the Group. Furthermore, an internal certification process has

been implemented, in which the functional capability of the internal checks was confirmed by an evaluation performed by
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our management. In addition to certifying the annual financial statements, the auditor must also audit the functionality of the internal control
system as well as the written assessment of our management within the scope of the U.S. reporting planned for the second quarter of 2007.
External consultation expenditure to implement these requirements and the additional audit fees negatively impacted corporate costs by more
than 3 million in 2006. These costs are in addition to the compliance costs incurred in 2005 in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. For
subsequent years, we are anticipating a significant reduction in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act costs as a significant portion of the costs incurred in
2005 and 2006 are one-time implementation costs and initial audit fees after the first Sarbanes-Oxley audit year.

Net financing costs

The net financing cost decreased by 4.1 million to 61.5 million in 2006 (2005: 65.5 million). In order to provide a better comparability of net
financing costs, we have presented in our Consolidated Income Statement the one-off interest expense of 12.8 million in connection with the
decision of the European Court of Justice (ECJ) separately. Interest on financial liabilities decreased by 7.4 million to 31.1 million in 2006 in
comparison with the previous year. This reduction was mainly due to the significant reduction of financial liabilities due to loan repayments in
2005 and 2006, as well as the refinancing and reduction of our U.S. Senior Facility. The discontinuation of the interest effect for the North
American antitrust liabilities and the reduced interest expenses for European antitrust proceedings after full payment of the graphite electrode
fine upheld by the judgment of the ECJ on June 29, 2006, also had a positive effect on the reporting year. Other financing costs improved by 4.5
million to 9.7 million in 2006, mainly due to the amortization of financing costs linked to the refinancing of our U.S. Senior Facility booked in
2005, the discontinuation of exchange rate effects, foreign currency hedging costs for the North American antitrust liabilities and the significant
decrease in expenses for bank guarantees to the European Commission.

Income taxes

Profit before taxes increased by 29.2 million or 62% from 47.2 million in 2005 to  76.4 million in 2006. The income tax expense of 35.5 million
for fiscal year 2006 reflects an overall tax rate of 46% (2005: 40%). This increase was due in part to the non-deductibility of the European

antitrust expense of 32.1 million in 2006 (2005: 0.0). Adjusting for these unusual circumstances in 2006 the comparable income before taxes
amounts to  121.3 million in 2006. On this basis the overall tax rate for 2006 was 29.3% (2005: 40%). This significantly lowered tax rate results
mainly from the positive developments in the United States, where we were able to utilize tax loss carry-forwards.

Net income/loss

Overall, our consolidated net income for the year 2006 reached 40.9 million, an increase of 12.8 or 45.6% over the net income in 2005 of 28.1.
Earnings per share were 0.66 (2005: 0.50).

2005 Compared to 2004
Overview
The fiscal year 2005 was characterized by the following major topics:
Overall sales growth of 13% with contributions from all business areas;
Favorable development in most of our customer industries;
Profit from operations considerably improved by 91% from 59.0 million in 2004 to 112.8 million in 2005;
Net financial debt substantially reduced to 264.7 million at the end of 2005;
Equity ratio increased from 20.3% as of December 31, 2004 to 27.2% as of December 31, 2005;
Cooperation with Audi for further development of carbon-ceramic brake discs with the aim of serial production; and

Early payment of the North American antitrust liabilities and refinancing and reduction of the U.S. dollar credit line.
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The further growth in the world economy in 2005 resulted in a favorable development in most of our customer industries. Our Carbon and
Graphite business area benefited in particular from the continuing positive development in the steel industry, which enjoyed another very good
year in 2005. In the Specialties business area, there was a significant increase in demand for high-temperature applications in the energy and
semiconductor industries. For the Process Technology business there was an above average rise in project invoicing. The significant sales
revenue increases in the Technologies (T) business area were mainly attributable to our increased sales of carbon-ceramic brake discs, carbon
fibers and composite materials for the automotive and aerospace industries and for industrial applications.

Profit from operations increased considerably by 91% from 59.0 million in 2004 to 112.8 million in 2005. All three business areas of the SGL
Group contributed to this improvement. Beside favorable developments of prices and volume, mainly the savings generated by the Group-wide
improvement initiative, SGL Excellence, and the newly established improvement program within administrative functions, SGL Ten, were the
main cause of growth in earnings.

Sales revenue

Consolidated sales revenue increased by 13.2% from 944.0 million in 2004 to 1,068.8 million in 2005. Currency exchange rate fluctuations had
no impact on the consolidated sales revenues in 2005 compared to 2004.

Based on the positive development in all three Business Areas, the respective shares in sales revenues remained virtually unchanged. Sales
revenue of Carbon and Graphite totaling 643.7 million increased by 14.4% compared to the previous year s level of 562.5 million. Specialties
(including the of the process technology business) increased its sales revenue from 246.3 million to 263.4 million. Technologies generated an
increase in sales from 133.5 million to  159.0 million.

Sales revenue by region during fiscal year 2005 remained largely unchanged from 2004: Germany 13%, other European countries 36%, North
America 27%, rest of the world 24%.

The Carbon and Graphite business area sales revenue totaled 643.7 million in 2005, an increase of 14.4% compared to the previous year s level
of 562.5 million. During 2005, volume and price effects impacted the reported sales revenues by 7% and 8%, respectively. Shipments of the core
product graphite electrodes increased to a record level of 222,000 metric tons (2004: 209,000 metric tons). Year on year, the increase can be
attributed mainly to the economic upswing in Europe as well as to market and customer-specific developments. In the other regions the good

sales level of the previous year was maintained. Significant price increases were achieved in both the euro and the USD zones. Based on local
currency, average prices for graphite electrodes increased by approximately 13% in the USD zone and approximately 5% in the euro zone in
2005. The sustained positive trend in the steel economy continued to have a positive impact on our order backlog at year-end. Sales of cathodes

at around 27,000 tons were slightly lower than in the previous year. By contrast, there was a slight increase in the proportion of graphitized
cathodes an indication of recovery in the aluminum industry. This was also apparent in a clear upturn in demand for our products, which began

in the second half of 2005. The significant price increases set for 2006 reflect both the rise in raw materials and energy costs and the improved
market situation. As in the previous year, our production capacities for furnace linings for the crude steel industry were fully utilized in 2005.

We were able to record another slight increase in sales revenues. The market for carbon electrodes for the production of silicon and

phosphorous, which accounted for approximately 4% of Carbon and Graphite sales revenue in 2005, was characterized by widespread stagnation
of global demand. Moreover, this market is shaped by excess capacities among suppliers and strong cost competition from low-wage countries,
which negatively impacts the price development.

Sales revenue in the Specialties business area was up by 6.9% from 246.3 million in 2004 to 263.4 million in 2005. Due to increased demand,
sales revenue grew in all activities during 2005. While there was a significant rise in demand for high temperature applications and in the energy
sector, the automotive business slowed down slightly. The semiconductor business also developed favorably. Project invoicing in the Process
Technology business increased above average. Asia and North America, in particular, provided positive growth impetus. There was a marked
increase in business volume in Europe as result of the strong export activity. Outside Europe, we were able to
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gain market shares in regions with rising demand. In Europe, we were able to maintain our market share despite the difficult market
environment.

In the Technologies business area sales revenue increased by 19.1% from 133.5 million in 2004 to 159.0 million in 2005. The growth was
mainly attributable to increased sales of carbon-ceramic brake discs, carbon fibers for niche markets (such as medical equipment) and yarns for
the automotive industry.

Cost of sales and gross profit

Consolidated cost of sales increased by 9.6% from 681.3 million in 2004 to 746.7 million in 2005. Compared to the consolidated sales revenue
growth of 13.2%, the increase in cost of sales could be limited despite higher raw material and energy costs in 2005 as a result of
disproportionately lower increases in personnel expenses. We mainly use petroleum coke and energy in our manufacturing processes. Total cost
of raw materials and consumables used increased from 192.8 million in 2004 to 242.0 million in 2005. In addition to higher product volumes,
this is partly related to the result of exchange rate changes, as we pay for petroleum coke exclusively in U.S. dollars and the U.S. dollar
strengthened slightly relative to the euro in 2005. Total cost of materials, which also includes the cost of purchased services, increased from

271.9 million in 2004 to  331.6 million in 2005, mainly due to costs for additional services in connection with the maintenance of our buildings,
machinery and equipment. Overall staff costs also increased from 289.5 million in 2004 to  309.5 million in 2005. While direct wages and
salaries (including boni) increased by 26.1 million year-on-year, mainly due to the higher level of bonus provisions in 2005 compared to 2004,
costs for social security contributions, retirement and other benefits decreased by 6.1 million.

The gross profit increased by  59.4 million or 22.6% from 262.7 million in 2004 to 322.1 million in 2005. The gross return on sales revenue,
representing gross profit as a percentage of sales revenue, increased from 27.8% to 30.1%. Contributing substantially to this were the favorable
price and volume developments in all business areas. We managed to more than recuperate the significant increases in energy (electricity, gas)
and raw material prices by adhering to our cost reduction programs and by implementing price adjustments.

Selling expenses, research costs, general and administrative expenses, other operating expense (net)

In spite of increased sales revenues, we succeeded in limiting the increase in selling expenses including freight costs, to 7.7 million; selling
expenses amounted to  126.8 million in 2005 (previous year: 119.1 million). At 18.0 million, research and development costs (R&D costs) were
slightly lower than in 2004. Part of the development costs were capitalized in 2005 in accordance with IAS 38. Due to the early product

life-cycle of our Technologies business area, significant cost components related to our research and development activities are also included

into the current operating costs of the T business area. As a result of the higher build-up in bonus provisions than in the prior year and due to
increased costs for Sarbanes Oxley Act compliance, general administrative costs totaled 48.1 million, around 4.5 million more than in 2004. Net
other operating expenses improved to  16.4 million in 2005 from 21.8 million in 2004. This also includes the income related proceeds from the
cooperation agreement with Audi. The expenses mainly related to the continuation of our various optimization programs.

Profit (loss) from operations

Profit from operations increased by 91.2% to 112.8 million in comparison with 59.0 million in 2004. Contributions came from all business areas.
The return on sales for the Group (based on profit from operations) rose from 6.3% in 2004 to 10.6% in 2005. A significant contribution was

made by the results of our SGL Excellence Initiative, which led to savings of 21.0 million on the basis of the SIX SIGMA method as well as

other programs continued during the reporting year. The continuation of our cost and production site optimization programs resulted in expenses
which were included in the segment results.

Profit from operations in the Carbon and Graphite business area improved more than proportionately by 40.7% from 86.4 million in 2004 to
121.6 million in 2005. The return on sales rose from 15.4% in 2004 to 18.9% in 2005. Major contributing factors to this positive development
were price and volume effects as well as cost reductions from our SGL Excellence efficiency

49

60



Edgar Filing: SGL CARBON AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F/A

Back to Contents

enhancing programs. Adjusting costs to eliminate the impact of the 10% increase in raw materials and energy costs the unit costs of graphite
electrodes decreased by 7% in comparison with 2004. The relocation of carbon electrode production from Ascoli, Italy to Nowy Sacz, Poland,
which began in 2005, was mainly completed by the end of 2006. At the end of 2005, an agreement on redundancy payments was reached with
112 employees in Ascoli. The appropriate fixed asset write downs are fully reflected in the 2005 earnings. Moreover, additional flexible early
retirement agreements were concluded at the Griesheim site in Germany to improve our competitiveness and allow us to compensate for
business-cycle-related decreases in demand.

In the Specialties business area (including the process technologies business) the profit from operations increased by 42.4% from 13.9 million in
2004 to  19.8 million in 2005. In addition to volume and price effects, site-specific product streamlining and the expansion of production in
Poland contributed to the improved margin. The return on sales increased from 5.6% in 2004 to 7.5% in 2005. In comparison with 2004, further
savings of 5 million were made, which roughly compensated for material cost increases. The ongoing efforts to lower the personnel cost portion
of the total production costs also led to expenses during the reporting year which are included in the earnings. The measures concentrated
primarily on the facilities in Bonn, Germany and Chedde, France.

Profit from operations in the SGL Technologies business area was 0.2 million (2004: 10.6 million) and contributed significantly to the general
improvement in earnings year on year. In addition to the volume growth in almost all Business Lines, price increases were also implemented,
which partially offset factor cost increases. Significant milestones were reached in 2005. One was a cooperation agreement with Audi for further
development of our carbon-ceramic brake disc. The objective of this cooperation is the use of our brake discs in new models produced by the
Volkswagen/Audi Group and the further development of product characteristics and technical production processes with the goal of industrial
serial production. In connection with the cooperation agreement, Audit made a significant cash contribution. The payment covers past and future
developments performed by SGL Carbon and contributed to the business area s positive earnings. Due to this, SGL Technologies reported a
positive profit from operations for 2005 under IFRS. In the carbon-fiber business, we entered into a strategic alliance with Mitsubishi Rayon Co.
Ltd., Japan at the beginning of 2005, concerning the supply of raw materials to our plant in Scotland in exchange for fiber production capacities.
SGL Technologies will therefore be able to enter new markets with high-quality fibers and improve the supply for captive use of composites.

Corporate costs decreased by around 1.9 million to 28.8 million in 2005 (2004: 30.7 million). In addition to the costs of the management
holding and the assigned central service areas, the costs related to the compliance with the US Sarbanes Oxley Act in 2005 were reported
centrally. Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act and the implementing rules and regulations, which will apply to us for the first time when we
report on our 2006 fiscal year, require our auditors to certify the functionality of our internal control systems. In this context, all processes which
affect financial reporting must be systematically analyzed and documented to provide evidence of a functioning internal control system. During
the review sessions, control processes are modified or changed, where appropriate. If necessary, the business procedures on which they are based
have to be completely re-aligned. In order to cope with this task, we have established a project team, which is supported by external consultants.
Around 15,000 man-hours were spent internally on this project in 2005. Corporate costs in 2005 were also affected by higher share-based
remuneration programs and higher provisions for performance-related bonus payments.

Net financing costs

The net financing costs amounted to  65.6 million during the 2005 fiscal year (2004: 61.9 million). Interest on borrowings increased by 3.4
million to  38.5 million in comparison with the previous year. Reasons for higher interest expenses were the interest expenses for our Old Senior
Notes, which were not included until mid-February in 2004 as well as interest rate derivatives, which had been settled in cash. These factors
were partially offset by a decrease in our other financial debt over the year (in particular the repayment of our U.S. senior facility and our
convertible bonds issued in 2000, reducing our interest payments accordingly). Since we paid the North American antitrust liabilities in full
ahead of time in 2005, the net financing costs included imputed interest expense for the last time in 2005. The foreign currency valuation and
foreign currency hedging costs for the
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North American antitrust liabilities also led to expenditures in the net financing costs for the last time. As part of the amortization of financing
costs, the refinancing of our U.S. senior facility in 2005 had a non-cash impact of approximately 1.2 million. The increase in other financial
expenses from 0.8 million in 2004 to 5.4 million in 2005 mainly results from the mark-to-market valuations of our interest and currency
derivatives as of December 31, 2005.

Income taxes

The income tax expense for fiscal year 2005 of 19.1 million reflects an overall tax rate of 40%, which is a normal average tax rate level for the
Group. A significant portion of our overall tax expense is attributable to tax expenses of foreign subsidiaries, which could not utilize the tax loss
carry-forwards of other subsidiaries.

Net income/loss from continuing operations
Net income from continuing operations increased by 32.6 million to 28.1 million in 2005 (2004: loss of 4.5 million).
Net income/loss from discontinued operations

In the consolidated statements of operations, we reclassified the surface protection business as a discontinued operation for 2004 and for the
previous years. For the fiscal year 2004, surface protection posted a net loss of 86.4 million. During 2005 no more losses occurred in connection
with the divestment of the surface protection business.

Net income/loss

Overall, our consolidated net income for the year 2005 reached 28.1 million after a net loss of 86.4 million in 2004. Earnings per share therefore
reached 0.50 (2004: loss of 1.66).

Inflation
During the past three years, the effects of inflation on our operations in Germany and other countries have generally been immaterial.
Critical Accounting Policies

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) issued disclosure guidance for critical accounting policies. The SEC defines critical
accounting policies as those that are the most important to the portrayal of our financial position and results and that require application of
management s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods.

The preparation of our financial statements requires our management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to business combinations, pensions and other post-employment benefits, deferred tax assets, impairment of assets,
allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory valuation and obsolescence, litigation and contingencies, restructuring of operations, and tax
contingencies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies are the most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results and require
management s more significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Accounting for Business Combinations/Goodwill

During the past years, we have completed several significant business combination transactions. In the future, we may continue to grow our
business through business combinations. We accounted for our past combinations using the purchase method. Accounting for business
combinations, by the purchase method, is complicated and involves the use of significant judgment.

Under the purchase method of accounting, a business combination is accounted for at a purchase price based upon the fair value of the
consideration given, whether it is in the form of cash, assets, stock or the assumption of liabilities. The assets and liabilities acquired are
measured at their fair values, and the purchase price is allocated to the assets and liabilities based upon these fair values. Any excess of the cost
of the purchased business over the acquired interest in the net fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. IFRS
requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at the cash generating unit level. The fair value of the cash generating unit is compared to the
book value including goodwill, if goodwill has been allocated to the cash generating unit, and excluding goodwill, if goodwill has not been
allocated to the cash generating unit. In order to determine the fair value of the cash generating unit, significant management judgment is applied
in order to estimate the underlying discounted future free cash flows. In the case, that the fair value of the cash generating unit is less than its
book value, the difference is recorded as an impairment. In 2006, 2005, and 2004 no goodwill was impaired based on the present value of
estimated future cash flows. The actual cash flows may differ significantly, thereby requiring an impairment in later periods.

Determining the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired involves the use of judgment, since the majority of the assets and liabilities
acquired do not have fair values that are readily determinable. Different techniques may be used to determine fair values, including market
prices, where available, appraisals, comparisons to transactions for similar assets and liabilities and present value of estimated future cash flows,
among others. Since these estimates involve the use of significant judgment, they can change as new information becomes available.

Pension and post-retirement benefit accounting

Our pension benefit costs and credits are determined in accordance with actuarial valuations, which rely on key assumptions, including discount
rates and expected returns on plan assets. We determine the market-related value of plan assets for the SGL Pension Funds based on the fair
value of plan assets in each fund at their measurement dates. Due to the underfunded status of certain pension plans at their respective
measurement dates, an additional minimum liability is recorded in other comprehensive income. Our postretirement benefit costs and credits are
determined in accordance with actuarial valuations, which rely on key assumptions, including discount rates, and increase or decrease in health
care trend rates. The discount rate assumptions reflect the rates available on high-quality fixed-income investments of appropriate duration at the
measurement dates of each plan. The expected return on plan assets assumption is determined on a uniform basis, considering long-term
historical returns, asset allocation, and future estimates of long-term investment returns. Other key assumptions for our pension and
postretirement benefit costs and credits are based in part on current market conditions. Pension and related postretirement benefit costs or credits
could change due to variations in these underlying key assumptions. Under IFRS, we included 13.1 million, 13.5 million and 13.3 million of
interest costs associated with our provision for pension and similar obligations in interest expense in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of the differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities
and their financial reporting amounts at each period end based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the
differences are expected to affect taxable earnings. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amount more likely than not to be realized.

Deferred tax assets from tax loss carry-forwards are uniformly recognized in the IFRS Consolidated Financial Statements on the basis of a
rolling projection of the estimated earnings to be taxed at the level of individual subsidiaries or on the level of tax groups. Uncertainties about
certain planning assumptions and other underlying conditions are taken into account. Based on the
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restructuring measures taken, the disposal of the loss generating Surface Protection business, the significant reduction of the net financial debt
and the improved economic market environment for our business segments, we assume that the capitalized deferred tax assets on loss
carry-forwards can be utilized in the future. Out of the loss carry-forwards in the U.S. and Germany, we have capitalized deferred tax assets
according to our estimate of their expected future utilization. As in the past, we did not recognize deferred tax assets on the losses we incurred in
the United Kingdom. In total we have capitalized tax loss carryforward as deferred tax assets amounting to 72.0 million as of December 31,
2006. The amounts capitalized are based on estimates and assumptions about the impact of tax planning strategies and future earnings. The
actual results may differ significantly, thereby requiring a valuation allowance in later periods.

Impairment of assets

We review the carrying values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. For assets to be disposed of, an impairment loss is recognized when the fair
value of the asset, less costs to dispose, is less than the carrying value of the asset. The fair value of the assets is generally based on discounted
estimated cash flows using annual pre-tax rates of 12.3%. The estimates reflect our assumptions about selling prices, production and sales
volume levels, costs, and market conditions over the estimated remaining operating period which can range from three months to over fifteen
years. If our assumptions related to assets to be held and used are inaccurate, additional write-downs may be required in the future. If estimates
of fair value less costs to sell are revised, the carrying amount of the related assets is adjusted, resulting in recognition of additional expense or
income (but only up to the original cost of the asset less depreciation that should have been recorded had no impairment been recognized).

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Each quarter we review the balances of accounts and other receivables and determine the necessary bad debt reserve based on the probability of
potential default.

If circumstances change for example, if the rate of default is higher or lower than expected or if a major customer s ability to meet its financial
obligations to us changes unexpectedly and materially, our estimates of the recoverability of amounts due to us could be reduced or increased by
a material amount.

Inventory valuation and obsolescence

The cost of all inventories is determined by the weighted average cost method. We write-down our inventories for estimated obsolescence or
unmarketable inventory to the lower net realizable value where required, based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If
actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

At December 31, 2006, we reported inventory of 316.6 million. Each quarter we review the inventory and make an assessment of the realizable
value. There are many factors that management considers in determining whether or not a reserve should be established. These factors include
the following:

a) return or rotation privileges with vendors,

b) expected usage during the next twenty-four months,

€) whether or not a customer is obligated by contract to purchase the inventory,
d) current market pricing, and

e) risk of obsolescence.

If circumstances change for example, if there are unexpected shifts in market demand, there could be a material impact on the net realizable
value of our inventory.
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Litigation and contingent liabilities
Antitrust and competition matters

We have accrued amounts for estimated settlements of antitrust actions pending against us as of December 31, 2006. Computing our future
liability for pending antitrust actions requires us to make judgments as to the probable outcome of litigation, future settlements and judgments to
be paid for open claims. We estimate the cost of final judgments by reviewing the probable outcome of pending appeals with our legal counsel.
If the actual cost of settlements and final judgments differs from our estimates, our reserves for open claims may not be sufficient. Any such
deficiency would be a loss that we would be required to recognize at the time it becomes reasonably estimable.

Litigation

We are currently involved in other legal proceedings resulting from the antitrust investigations and settlements. As discussed in Note 22 of our
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2006, we have accrued an estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these
claims. Attorneys in our legal department specializing in litigation claims monitor and manage all claims filed against us. Our management
develops estimates of probable costs related to these claims in consultation with outside legal counsel who are defending us in these actions. We
base our estimates on an analysis of potential results, assuming a combination of litigation and settlement strategies. We attempt to resolve
claims through mediation and arbitration where possible. If the actual settlement costs and final judgments, after appeals, differ from our
estimates, our future results may be adversely affected.

Restructuring of operations

When required, we record restructuring charges incurred in connection with consolidation or relocation of operations, discontinued businesses,
or shutdowns of specific sites. These restructuring charges, which reflect management s commitment to a termination or exit plan are based on
estimates of the expected costs associated with site closure, legal and environmental matters, demolition, contract terminations, or other costs
directly related to the restructuring. If the actual cost incurred exceeds the estimated cost, an additional charge to earnings will result. If the
actual cost is less than the estimated cost, a credit to earnings will be recognized.

Given the complexity of estimates, actual expenses could differ from management s estimates. If actual results are different from original
estimates, we will record additional expense or income in the statement of income.

For years ended December 31, 2004 and prior years, we had presented expenditures for restructuring costs separately in the statement of
operations. Beginning in 2005, we discontinued this presentation and began including restructuring expenses as part of other operating expenses.
For comparability, amounts for prior years were adjusted to conform to the 2005 presentation. Expenses associated with the divestiture of the
surface protection business in fiscal year 2004 are a component of discontinued operations.

Tax contingencies

We believe we have a reasonable basis in applicable tax law for the positions we take on the various tax returns we file. However, we maintain
tax reserves in recognition of the fact that various tax authorities may take opposing views on some issues, that the costs and hazards of litigation
in maintaining the positions that we have taken on various returns might be significant and that the tax authorities may prevail in their attempts
to overturn these positions. The amounts of these reserves, the potential issues they are intended to cover and their adequacy to do so, are topics
of frequent review internally and with outside tax professionals. Where necessary, adjustments are periodically made to such reserves to reflect
the lapsing of statutes of limitations, closings of ongoing examinations or the commencement of new examinations.

Significant Differences Between IFRS and U.S. GAAP

This section describes the significant differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP as they relate to the SGL Group. See also Notes 35 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Business Combinations

Prior to the adoption of IAS 22 (revised 1993) on January 1, 1995, the Group wrote-off all goodwill directly to equity in accordance with IFRS
existing at that time. The adoption of IAS 22 (revised 1993) did not require prior period restatement. Accordingly, a U.S. GAAP difference
exists with respect to the recognition of goodwill and its related amortization before January 1, 1995 and for the amortization of goodwill after
January 1, 2002 and until December 31, 2003. For the purpose of the reconciliation to U.S. GAAP, the pre-1995 goodwill was amortized
through the Consolidated Income Statements over the estimated useful lives between five and 20 years. Since January 1, 2002 under U.S. GAAP
goodwill is no longer being amortized over the estimated useful live instead an annual impairment test per FAS 142 ( Goodwill and other
Intangible Assets ) must be performed. Starting January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 3 goodwill is no longer amortized.

In accordance with IFRS, any negative goodwill resulting in a business combination as an excess of the acquirer s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the acquisition is presented as a deduction from the assets of the reporting enterprise, in the
same balance sheet classification as goodwill, and recognized in the income statement over its remaining estimated useful live. Accordingly,
under U.S. GAAP an excess of the acquirer interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the acquisition was
allocated to reduce proportionately the values assigned to non-current assets. The remainder of the excess over costs ( negative goodwill ) was
classified as a deferred credit. As of January 1, 2002 these amounts were written off and recognized as the effect of a change in accounting
principle. Subsequent to January 1, 2002 under U.S. GAAP any negative goodwill arising from a business combination is recognized as income
immediately.

Internal Use Software, Intangible Assets and Interest Capitalization on Tangible Fixed Assets

Statement of Position (SOP) 98-1 ( Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software developed or obtained for internal use ) provides U.S. GAAP
guidance on accounting for the costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use. Under U.S. GAAP overhead costs should not

be capitalized as costs of internally developed software while under IFRS directly allocated overhead costs are allowed to be capitalized. During
the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 the SGL Group capitalized software costs in the amount of 0.8 million and 1.0 million, respectively
under U.S. GAAP. The accumulated amount of this reconciling item as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was (2.6) million and (3.0) million,
respectively. The unamortized software costs as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 amounted to 7.9 million and 8.5 million, respectively and the
amortization in 2006, 2005 and 2004 amounted to 1.2 million, 1.6 million and 1.0 million, respectively. The amortization in 2006 decreased
because the useful life was extended from 7 to 10 years.

Under IFRS development expenses can be capitalized if future economic benefits will flow to the company. In 2005 and 2004 SGL Group
capitalized development cost of 1.5 million and 2.9 million for its ceramic disc brake, respectively before this asset was sold in connection with
the cooperation agreement with Audi in July 2005. U.S. GAAP does not allow the capitalization of such costs. Accordingly, these costs were
expensed as incurred in 2005 and 2004. Thus, the gain under U.S. GAAP was 4.4 million higher, than under IFRS. The accumulated amount of
this reconciling item as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 was 0.0 million and (2.9) million, respectively.

U.S. GAAP requires the capitalization of interest costs as part of the historical cost of fixed assets requiring a period of time to construct. Per

IFRS benchmark treatment, interest cost ( Borrowing Costs ) should be recognized as an expense in the period in which they occur. The company
has elected to use the IFRS benchmark treatment, which results in a reconciliation difference to U.S. GAAP for the capitalization of borrowing
costs. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 the SGL Group did not capitalize interest under U.S. GAAP. The years 2006,
2005 and 2004 include amortization of previously capitalized interest amounting to 0.3 million, 0.3 million and 0.3 million respectively. The
accumulated amount of this reconciling item as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 1.7 million and 1.9 million, respectively.
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Pre-production development cost

Under IFRS development expenses can be capitalized if future economic benefits will flow to the company. Under EITF 99-5 costs to perform
certain services related to the design and development of the products it will sell under long-term supply arrangements and costs to design and
develop molds, dies, and other tools that will be used in producing those products should be expensed as incurred, unless they are reimbursed or
a noncancelable right to use exists. Certain pre-production expenses incurred by one of our domestic subsidiaries in 2006 and 2005 ( 1.7 million
and 0.7 million) and one of our U.S. subsidiaries in previous years ( 0.3 million) did not meet the requirements as specified under EITF 99-5
(Accounting for Pre-Production Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Arrangements). Accordingly we recorded an U.S. GAAP adjustment to
expense these amounts.

Pension Provisions

Under IFRS, pension costs and similar obligations are accounted for in accordance with IAS 19, Employee Benefits . IAS 19 ( Employee
Benefits ) as applied by the Group is substantially similar to the methodology required under FAS 158 ( Employers Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) ) and FAS 87 ( Employers
Accounting for Pensions ). The transition provisions under IAS 19 permit the cumulative effect of an accounting change to be either recognized
immediately or delayed and recognized on a straight-line basis over a period of up to five years from the date of adoption of IAS 19 (its
transition period ends in 2004 for enterprises adopting IAS 19 as of its effective date).

For the financial year 2006, we adopted FAS 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans  An
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) . FAS 158 requires the immediate recognition of the funded status of our pension
plans on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. After adoption of this standard, all accumulated net actuarial losses and unamortized prior service
costs are recognized in the December 31, 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheet. However, FAS 158 does not affect the recognition of pension cost
and, therefore, the accumulated actuarial losses and unamortized prior service costs have not been recognized in our Consolidated Income
Statements.

With the adoption of FAS 158, Employer s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, the recognition of a
minimum pension liability is eliminated. Under FAS 158 the funded status of defined-benefit pension plans is recognized as an asset
(overfunded plans) or liability (underfunded plans) in the Consolidated Balance Sheets with respective adjustments in accumulative other
comprehensive income. Under IAS 19, unlike with FAS 158, current actuarial gains/losses and prior service cost continue to remain
unrecognized in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Incentive Plans

As of January 1, 2005 the SGL Group adopted IFRS 2 Share-based payment . IFRS 2 deals with accounting for share-based payment
transactions, including grants of share options to employees and specifies the financial reporting by an entity when it undertakes a share-based
payment transaction and requires an entity to reflect in its profit or loss and financial position the effects of share-based payment transactions,
including expenses associated with transactions in which share options are granted to employees. The IFRS was applied retrospectively on all
share-based payments granted since November 7, 2002, that still existed when the standard became effective and required comparable
information to be restated. This also includes a restatement to the opening balances of the retained earnings in the earliest period presented. IFRS
2 is similar to the accounting under FAS 123(R). All prior years under IFRS as well as the U.S. GAAP adjustments had to be restated, because
the retrospective implementation of IFRS 2 also impact the U.S. GAAP adjustments for all prior years. Because of the application of IFRS 2 in
2004, the equity had to be restated by 1.8 million as of January 1, 2004.

The SGL Group provides a bonus compensation for certain employees meeting specified performance targets. The bonus is satisfied in form of
cash for management and in form of SGL
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stock for all other employees. The numbers of shares given to the employees is calculated by dividing the bonus amount by the market price of
the shares. Previously the expense in the Consolidated Income Statement was recognized using the nominal value ( 2.56) of the shares. After
adoption of IFRS 2 we expense the bonus compensation for all employees using the current market price of the shares. This was adjusted
restrospectively for all periods presented. U.S. GAAP matches the cost of the bonus with the period in which the services are rendered.

Early retirement

Included in this reconciling item are early retirement contracts in Germany, in which incremental compensation costs SGL Group incurs under
such contracts are recognized under IFRS immediately once a binding contractual agreement has been entered into. The early retirement
contracts in the SGL Group are generally set up according to the block model. Under such block model early retirement agreements, the
employee works full time during the employment phase although in this period he or she is only paid according to the part-time agreement apart
from the incremental compensation received. By this means, during the employment phase, the employer accrues the portion of current wages
that will be paid out in the future. Under FAS 112 Employers Accounting for Postemployement Benefits and EITF 05-5 Accounting for the
Early Retirement Programs and Similar Type Agreements the complete compensation that the employee receives during the released phase
(continued part time compensation and the incremental compensation) are accrued over the employees service period (employment phase). The
addition to provisions begins with the signing of the part-time retiree agreement. After the employment phase has ended and the employee enters
into the released phase, the total compensation that the employee will receive during the released phase must have been be reserved.

Revenue Recognition

Audi and the SGL Group entered into a cooperation agreement in 2005, which targeted to develop SGL s existing carbon ceramic brakes
technology for mass production. Under IFRS the components of these cooperation agreement were accounted for as separate agreements in order
to reflect the economic substance of the transaction. Pursuant to paragraph 9 of EITF 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables ,
a delivered item is accounted for as a separate unit if 1) the delivered item has value on a standalone basis, 2) there is an objective and reliable
evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items, and 3) when the customer has a general right of return relative to the delivered item, delivery
or performance of the undelivered item is considered probable and substantially in the control of the vendor. After testing for these conditions,
the two items were seen as one unit for revenue recognition purposes and a determinable period of performance existed from July 2005 to
December 2006 and therefore revenue was recognized per Proportional-Performance Method (SAB 104) ratably over that period of
performance. Accordingly the gross revenue related to the delivered component of the cooperation agreement was recognized immediately under
IFRS but was deferred under U.S. GAAP as of December 31, 2005. As the performance period ended on December 31, 2006 the IFRS to U.S
GAAP difference reversed in 2006 and there is no more difference as of December 31, 2006.

Deferred taxes

The items discussed above create differences between the U.S. GAAP book and tax basis of assets and liabilities, requiring the recognition of
associated deferred tax assets and liabilities. With some exceptions, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all differences between
the book and tax basis of the assets and liabilities using future statutory tax rates. In addition, a valuation allowance is established when it is
more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized.
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U.S. GAAP Reconciliation

We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS, which differ in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. See
Significant Differences Between IFRS and U.S. GAAP as well as Note 35 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of these
differences.

(in millions of ) 2006 2005 2004

Net income (loss) per IFRS 40.7 28.2 (86.4)
Goodwill amortization (0.0) 0.0) 0.0)
Intangible/tangible assets 0.1 3.2 (1.5)
Pre-production development cost (1.7) 0.7) 0.0)
Pension provisions 0.3 0.3 0.9

Incentive plans 0.0 0.0 1.3

Early retirement 0.6 0.7 (1.2)
Revenue recognition 8.9 (8.9)

Deferred tax on U.S. GAAP adjustments 9.7 0.0 (1.0)
Net income (loss) per U.S. GAAP 58.6 22.8 (87.9)

Under U.S. GAAP our profit from operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was 133.3 million, 94.0 million and 45.4
million respectively, compared to an profit from operations under IFRS for the same periods of 137.9 million, 112.8 million and 59.0 million,
respectively. Our U.S. GAAP profit from operations in 2006, 2005 and 2004 differed from our IFRS profit from operations for the same years,
primarily due to differences in capitalized intangible assets, provisions, reserves and valuation as well as differing additions to provisions for
pensions. Furthermore, we reclassified the interest component associated with our annual pension provision of 13.1 million in 2006 (2005: 13.5
million; 2004: 13.3 million) as interest expense under IFRS. See Note 35 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the
differences between our IFRS accounting policies and those that would be required under U.S. GAAP.

Basic earnings (loss) per share in accordance with U.S. GAAP in 2006 was 0.95, compared to 0.40 in 2005 and to  (1.68) in 2004. Basic earnings
(loss) per ADR in accordance with U.S. GAAP in 2006 was 0.32, compared to 0.13 in 2005 and to (0.56) in 2004. Because there was no dilutive
effect in 2006 and 2005 and a net loss in the year 2004, the diluted earnings (loss) per share for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was identical to the

respective basic earnings (loss) per share.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements not yet adopted
U.S. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)

FAS 157 Fair Value Measurements provides further guidance for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
FAS 157 applies to all accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, but does not enlarge its scope. Fair value is
defined as the price in an orderly transaction between market participants that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability.
FAS 157 establishes a three-step fair value hierarchy. Highest priority is given to quoted prices in an active market. Observable data for identical
assets or liabilities is preferred to prices that relate only to similar assets and liabilities. The lowest priority is given to unobservable data e.g.

data that reflects the company s own assumptions. The fair value hierarchy in FAS 157 shows that fair value is market related and is not an entity
specific value. FAS 157 must be applied to reporting periods beginning after November 15, 2007. SGL Group is currently determining the effect
on the its financial statements. We do not expect that the application of this standard will have a material impact on SGL Groups Consolidated
Financial Statements.

FAS 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities provides companies with an option to report selected financial
assets and liabilities at fair value. The Standard s objective is to reduce both complexity in accounting for financial instruments and the volatility
in earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently. FAS 159 also
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establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different measurement
attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. FAS 159 does not eliminate disclosure requirements included in other accounting standards,
including requirements for disclosure about fair value measurements included in FAS 157 Fair Value Measurements and No. 107 Disclosures
about Fair Value of Financial Instruments . FAS 159 is effective for an entity s first financial year beginning after 15 November 2007, with earlier
adoption permitted. The SGL Group is currently evaluating the effect of FAS 159 on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

FASB Interpretation ( FIN )48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes provides specific guidance on how uncertainties in income tax
positions and the resulting potential tax benefits should be recognized, measured, presented and disclosed in an enterprise s financial statements.
FIN 48 defines a more-likely-than-not threshold that must be met before a tax benefit can be recognized. If this condition is fulfilled for an
uncertain tax position, the tax benefit is measured as the largest amount that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with a taxing authority having full knowledge of all relevant information. Any previously recognized tax benefit has to be
derecognized in its entirety, if the threshold is no longer met. FIN 48 requires qualitative and quantitative disclosures about potential tax benefits
that have been recognized for tax purposes, but not recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 is effective for annual financial statements
covering periods beginning after December 15, 2006. SGL Group will adopt FIN 48 starting January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect will be
reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of the date of adoption, except for items that would not be recognized in
earnings, such as the effects of the positions related to business combinations. SGL Group is currently determining the effect of FIN 48 on its
Consolidated Financial Statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The IASB issued a revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs. The main change from the previous version is the removal of the option of immediately
recognising as an expense borrowing costs that relate to assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale. An entity is,
therefore, required to capitalise borrowing costs as part of the cost of such assets. The revised Standard applies to borrowing costs relating to
qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after January, 1 2009. Earlier application is permitted. The SGL
Group has not capitalized borrowing costs and has followed the benchmark treatment to recognise borrowing costs as an expense in the period in
which they incurred. The SGL Group is currently evaluating the effect of IAS 23 on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires more extensive disclosure regarding financial instruments. The disclosure requirements in
IAS 32 were incorporated into IFRS 7 and extended. In addition to the existing disclosure requirements regarding the approach, presentation and
measurement of financial instruments, additional information is required regarding the type and extent of risks stemming from financial
instruments. As SGL Group already publishes extensive information in its Notes to the Financial Statements regarding risk, it is not expected
that this will have any material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the SGL Group. IFRS 7 is to be applied for reporting years
beginning on or after January 1, 2007.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments replaces IAS 14 and adopts the management approach to reporting on the financial performance of its operating
segments of the corresponding U.S. GAAP standard. IFRS 8 will require segmentation based on the internal reporting structure and associated
with this the disclosure of management information used for evaluating segment performance and making decisions on allocation of resources to
operating segments. Vertically integrated segments should be considered as operating segments if they are managed as such. IFRS 8 shall be
applied for reporting years for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009. Earlier application is permitted. As SGL Group uses the same
performance indicators for external reporting as for internal management reporting, it is expected that IFRS 8 will not have any effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the SGL Group.

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives clarifies the accounting for embedded derivatives according to IAS 39. The interpretation
concludes that an entity, when it first becomes a
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party to a contract, must assess whether any embedded derivatives contained in the contract are required to be separated from the host contract
and accounted for as if they were stand-alone derivatives. Subsequent reassessment is prohibited unless there is a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required under the contract, in which case reassessment is required.
IFRIC 9 is to be applied to reporting years for the periods beginning on or after June 1, 2006. Earlier application is permitted. IFRIC 9 will have
no material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the SGL Group.

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting addresses the interaction between the requirements of IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and IAS 36
Impairment of Assets and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The interpretation concludes that where an entity has

recognized an impairment loss in an interim period according to IAS 36 or IAS 39, that impairment should not be reversed in subsequent interim

financial statements or in annual financial statements. IFRIC 10 shall be applied for reporting years for the periods beginning on or after

November 1, 2006. Earlier application is permitted. IFRIC 10 will have no material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the SGL

Group.

IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions regulates how to apply IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions to share-based
payment arrangements involving an entity s own equity instruments or equity instruments of another entity in the same group. The interpretation
requires a share-based payment arrangement in which an entity receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity instruments to be
accounted for as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction. The interpretation also provides guidance on whether share-based payment
arrangements, in which suppliers of goods or services of an entity are provided with equity instruments of the entity s parent, should be
accounted for as cash-settled or equity-settled in the entity s financial statements. IFRIC 11 shall be applied for reporting years for the periods
beginning on or after March 1, 2007. Earlier application is permitted. IFRIC 11 will have no material effect on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the SGL Group.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements regulates the accounting for service concessions arrangements between private sector companies
and government or other public sector entities to provide public services. IFRIC 12 will have no effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the SGL Group.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

In May 2007, SGL Group concluded its new refinancing, which was officially announced on May 2, 2007. The new financing, comprising the

new Senior Facility, the 200.0 Corporate Bonds, and 200.0 convertible bonds issued on May 16, 2006 (the Convertible Bonds ), completely
replaced our existing bank syndicated facilities (the Old Facilities ) and the Old Senior Notes issued in connection with SGL Group s refinancing
in 2004. (See also Item 10, Additional Information Material Contracts.) The Senior Facility provides for a 75.0 million revolving credit facility
(with the remaining 125.0 million making up an acquisition facility). As of June 25, 2007, the Senior Facility remained undrawn, which means
that we have all of the 75.0 million revolving credit facility available to meet our working capital requirements. SGL thus believes that its

working capital is sufficient for its present requirements.

Our sources of cash came mainly from cash flow from operations and external borrowings. We used these funds primarly to finance our working
capital and capital expenditures requirements. We believe the funds available from these and other sources will be sufficient to statisfy our
working capital needs and to service our debt obligations. Generally, we centrally manage the liquidity and capital resources for each buiness
unit within the SGL Group.

SGL Carbon AG is a holding company that has limited revenue-generating operations of its own. Substantially all of SGL s consolidated
revenues are earned by its subsidiaries. Consequently, the SGL s cash flow and its ability to meet its cash requirements are dependent upon the
profitability and cash flows of its subsidiaries and payments by such subsidiaries to SGL in the form of loans,
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dividends, fees or otherwise, as well as SGL s own credit arrangements. A number of SGL s German subsidiaries are parties to domination and
profit transfer agreements with SGL. Under these agreements, the subsidiaries must transfer their annual net profit to SGL. Under certain
circumstances, however, SGL as the dominating entity must compensate each subsidiary that is part of such agreements for any net loss the
subsidiary incurs. German law allows those subsidiaries to waive or compromise their claim under these agreements if SGL is insolvent
(illiquid) and has reached an agreement with its creditors to avoid the filing of SGL for insolvency or in case the compensation claims are
subject to, and compromised by an insolvency plan (Insolvenzplan). In all other circumstances, the subsidiaries are not allowed by German
mandatory law to waive or compromise their respective compensation claims unless three years have passed since the rescindment of the
domination and profit transfer agreement has been entered into the commercial register of the relevant subsidiary and have been made public.

Capital Resources

The following is a presentation of our capital resources for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2006 and 2005. On March 16 and 17, 2006
SGL Carbon AG announced and completed a capital increase of 5,583,529 shares at a price of 15.00 per share, resulting in gross proceeds
totaling 83.7 million. The shares were placed with German and international institutional investors. The application of the proceeds from the
capital increase is not reflected in the table below.

Overview of Bank Debt And Cash Flows

Year ended December

31,
(in millions of ) 2006 2005
Short term debt and current maturities 0.7 9.2
Long term debt 331.4 348.9
Total financial debt 332.1 358.1
Cash and cash equivalents (103.0) (93.4)
Net financial debt 229.1 264.7

As of December 31, 2006 we had an aggregate amount of 332.1 million financial debt outstanding, consisting of 270 million 8.5% Old Senior
Notes due 2012 issued by SGL Luxembourg Finance S.A. in connection with our refinancing in 2004 and 60.70 million outstanding under our
Old Facilities and 1.4 million other bank debt.

We issued the Old Senior Notes on February 9, 2004, through our finance subsidiary SGL CARBON Luxembourg S.A. The Old Senior Notes
bear interest semi-annually at a rate of 8.5% and provide for a maturity date of February 1, 2012. On May 16, 2007, we effected a satisfaction
and discharge of the Old Senior Notes by purchasing, out of a portion of the net proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds and the
Corporate Bonds, and depositing with the trustee for the Old Senior Notes government bonds sufficient to pay interest, principal and premium
on the Old Senior Notes until the first redemption date of the Old Senior Notes on February 1, 2008. See also Item 10, Additional
Information Material Contracts Old Senior Notes .

Our Old Facilities originally consisted of a senior facility (consisting of term loans A, B and C and a multicurrency revolving credit facility) and

the U.S. senior facility. On September 1, 2005 we repaid our U.S. senior facility in full in the amount of US$111.1 million (equivalent to 82.4
million) and replaced it in part with an additional USD tranche in the amount of US$80.0 million under the senior facility. As of December 31,
2006, the Old Facilities, excluding the term loan B, consisted of an aggregate amount of 102.7 million, of which 60.7 million was used and 42.0
million was unused. The remaining outstanding amounts under the Old Facilities were repaid in full as of May 16, 2007, out of a portion of the

net proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds and the
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Corporate Bonds, and the Old Facilities were concurrently terminated. See also Item 10, Additional Information Material Contracts Old Facilities .

In addition, as of December 31, 2006, we had PLN60 million available under our Polish facility with BNP Paribas Polska S.A. See Item 10,
Additional Information Material Contracts Polish Facility.

On December 31, 2006 we drew  22.2 million under our Term B facility of 28.8 million

In February 2004 an aggregate amount of 125.3 million was deposited in an escrow account entitled Antitrust Deposit Account for the payment
of obligations from the North American antitrust penalties and from civil law settlements as well as the fine imposed in 2003 by the European
antitrust commission. We used the account for scheduled payments in March and June 2005 of 7.5 million each, and for the final payment of the
outstanding liability in the amount of 54.2 million, including currency-hedging costs, which was paid in full in August 2005. The residual credit
balance on the Antitrust Deposit Account of 8.7 million was used for debt repayment.

In the context of the refinancing activities end of 2003, Moody s and Standard & Poor s started the rating coverage of SGL on January 23, 2004.

The improved operational performance, the significant reduction of financial liabilities, the strong cash flow generation and the resulting

improvement of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and financing structure were rewarded in 2005 by both SGL covering rating agencies Moody s

and Standard & Poors (S&P). Moody s upgraded SGL Carbon s senior implied rating on April 27, 2005 SGL from B2 to Bl and the Old Senior
Notes from Caal to B3 .On August 11, 2005 S&P upgraded SGL s corporate rating from B to B+ and the Old Senior Notes from CCC+ to

Due to the continuing good operational performance and the further generation of cash flow as well as the successfully placed capital increase at

the beginning of 2006, both rating agencies rewarded SGL again with upgrades. Moody s upgraded SGL Carbon s senior implied rating on

March 20, 2006 from Bl to Ba3 and the Old Senior Notes from B3 to B2 .On May 4, 2006 S&P upgrated SGL s coporate rating from B+ tc
and the Old Senior Notes from B- to B .

On March 26, 2007 SGL Group received an upgrade from Standard & Poor s on its credit worthiness. The rating of the SGL Carbon AG

corporate rating was raised by one notch from BB- to BB with a stable outlook. On June 12, 2007 the SGL Group received another upgrade from

Standard & Poor s forits new 200.0 million Corporate Bonds . Standard & Poor s raised the new Corporate Bonds by one notch from BB+ to
BBB- with no change to the corporate rating.

In May, 2007 Moody s upgraded the SGL Carbon AG corporate family rating by one notch to Ba2 with a stable outlook. The Corporate Bonds
and the Convertible Bonds were also upgraded by Moody sto Ba3 and Bal , respectively.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures in 2006 were primarily related to normal maintenance, cost reduction and efficiency improvements of operating facilities.
The main areas of investment included automation of individual processing steps, replacement and expansion of existing equipment,
environmental and safety investments as well as investments for relocating production activities from Italy and Germany to our facilities in
Poland. Capital expenditure has also been used to fund strategic organic growth, such as the construction of a new processing center in
Meitingen, Germany, preparatory work for the construction of the new production plant in Malaysia, and expansion of our capacities for carbon
fibers in Inverness, UK, and for isostatic graphite in Bonn, Germany.

We expect that expenses for expanding our capacities and upgrading our equipment will be significantly higher in 2007 than in previous years
arising from measures taken to realize the opportunities to expand into Southeast and East Asia, and on the basis of new product launches. For
the fiscal year 2007, we plan to make capital expenditures (excluding financial investments) totaling approximately 105 million. Of this amount,
we had made capital expenditures totaling approximately 14.4 million as of March 31, 2007. For the construction of our new plant in Malaysia,
capital expenditures of around 50 million are planned over a period of three years. We anticipate financing the capital expenditures largely
through cash flow from our operations.
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The following table summarizes our debt and significant obligations as of December 31, 2006 :

Maturing in:

Less than
Obligations Total one year 2008 2009 2010 2011  After 2011
(in (in (in (in (in (in (in
millions of milli